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VISION STATEMENT

To make TNGCL as a key energy provider, by connecting CNG &
PNG network in the state of Tripura, Manipur and Mizoram by
providing eco-friendly and clean fuel to transport, domestic,
commercial and industrial sectors with a total commitment of
safeguarding the Iinterest of the community, Customers
Satisfaction, Value Creation for all Stakeholders and
Environmental Responsibility

*

MISSION STATEMENT

Healthy environement.

Provide eco-friendly and clean fuel with uninterrupted gas
supply to our valued customers with a total commitment
to create high standard of business ethics and values
adhering all the safety standards to create a safe &
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It is a great privilege for me to be the Chairman of Tripura Natural Gas
Company Ltd. The responsibility cast on me assumes more significance so
much so in heading a a Joint Venture between GAIL (India) Ltd, Tripura
Industrial Development Corporation Ltd. (A Govt. of Tripura Undertaking)
and Assam Gas Company Ltd (A Govt. of Assam Undertaking). TNGCL is
maintaining a sound financial performance over the years and paying
regular dividend to Stakeholder. A committed Board of Directors, vibrant
management and dedicated young team are in the threshold of unleashing
the vast potential in Natural Gas transportation business in our country.
Having been closely associated with the petroleum sector | have noted the
tremendous opportunity in the Gas value chain. We have the vision to be a
growth oriented energy company dedicated towards enhancing
stakeholder value and customer delight through operational excellence
and contributing towards a safe and clean eco system. This shall be the
mission with which all in TNGCL should be working. The task, of course is
daunting. But the kind of talent among our pool of Officers and staff, the
record of accomplishments so far and with continued dedication by all
concerned will certainly enable us to achieve our cherished goals.

Sd/
Gokul Chandra Swargiyari

- ‘ Chairman
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 34th Director’s Report
and the Company's audited Financial Statement for the Financial
year ended March 31, 2024.

TRIPURA NATURAL GAS COMPANY LIMITED (TNGCL) established on
10th July 1990, is a Joint Venture between GAIL (India) Ltd, Tripura
Industrial Development Corporation Ltd. (A Govt. of Tripura
Undertaking) and Assam Gas Company Ltd (A Govt. of Assam
Undertaking).

Tripura Natural Gas Company Limited is engaged in providing
Natural Gas as an eco-friendly, easy-on pocket source of fuel to
Domestic, Commercial, Industrial and Automobile segments in the
state of Tripura. Since 1990, TNGCL has been consistent in creating
robust CGD infrastructure in and around the capital city of Agartala,
Gomati and West Tripura Districts in the state of Tripura and now
TNGCL is going to expand its business in the state of Manipur and
Mizoram.
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The Financial Performance of the Company for the period ended 31-03-2024 is summarized

bu’
i Pﬂ'ﬂgﬂfltl Previous E‘I’ Current FY Percentage i
2022-23 2023-24 Increase /
(Decrease)

Sales of Gas-CNG 174.76 194.26 11.16%

Sales of Gas-PNG 88.83 87.96 -0.99%

Revenue from Operations 263.59 282.22 7.07%

Other Income 8.46 10.24 21.08%

Total Revenue/Turnover 272.05 29246 7:50%

Profit After Tax (PAT) 2025 091 | 10201%

PAT (%) 71.44% 13.99%

Profit Before Tax (PBT) 29.58 48.92 65.37%

PBT (%) 10.87% 16.73%

EBITDA 50.08 68.20 36.20%

EBITDA (%) 18.41% 23.32%

Shareholder's Equity:

Equity Share Capital-Paid up 30.00 30.00

Reserves & Surplus 167.10 206.10

Shareholders” Equity/Net Worth 197.10 236.10 19.79%

EPS 67.51 136.37 102.01%

Current Assets 127.28 152.66

Current Liabilities 21.05 18.49

Working Capital 106.23 108.78 26.30%

Fixed Assets (Net) 136.31 125.21 -8.14%

For the Current FY-2023-24, the Company has achieved increase in Turnover by 7.50% and
increase in PAT by 102.01% compared to the last FY-2022-23.
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Other Achievements of the Company are as follows
Table B. Sales Volume

[ im SCMI
Year/ Sales Volume -% age-Increase/Decrease CNG Sales = Total Sales
Sector Nl
Domestic | Commercial | Industrial Total PNG CNG Total

2023-24 1,79,08,086 | 3558486 | 72,97,758 | 2,87,64,330 | 3,59,68,209 6,47,32,539
2022-23 1,63,76,330 | 30,36,247 | 72,10,084 | 2,66,22,661 | 3,32,85,588 | 5,99,08,248
Increase/
(Decrease) 15,31,756 | 5,22,239 87,674 & 21,41,669 | 26,82,621 A 48,24,291
% age Inc / (Dec) 9.35% 17.20% 1.22% B.04% 8.06% B.05%

The Company has achieved increase in CNG Sales volume by 8.06% and increase in PNG

Sales Volume by 8.04% and overall growth in Sales volume by 8.05% for the financial year

2023-24 compared to the previous financial year 2022-23.

SUMMARIZED CASH FLOW STATEMENT:

(in lakh)

Cash Flows: 2022-23 (Rs.) | 2023-24 (Rs.)

Inflow/(Outflow) from operations 1680.64 614.66
Inflow/(Outflow) from investing activities (1739.15) | (2148.03)
Inflow/(Outflow) from financing activities (1143.1) | (667.80)
Cash and Cash equivalents 3584.35 2382.74
N etlncreasd(decreasc)m cash & cash equivalent 2382.74 181.57

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS:

TNGCL has completed its three decades of eventful journey, starting with a humble
beginning in 1990, your company today Is considered as the fastest growing CGD Entity in

entire Eastern India.

Your Company grew organically over the years by building substantial network of Natural
Gas pipeline having a total of 1501 Km of interlinked PE pipelines and 11.86 Km of Steel

Pipeline to cater to entire city of Agartala, rest of West Tripura and Gomati Tripura.

With joining of GAIL in 2005 as a major stakeholder, TNGCL has grown phenomenally,
creating robust CNG infrastructure. With just one CNG station in 2007, now TNGCL has total
34 (Thirty-Four) CNG stations by adding 1 (one) CNG station this financial year for clean air to

the environment and adding value to the ecology & future generation.
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SHARE CAPITAL:

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 30 Crores and the paid-up share
capital of the Company is also Rs. 30 Crores,

DETAILS REGARDING THE MATERIAL CHANGES THAT OCCURRED DURING THE
PERIOD

IN THE COMPANY:

For the Financial Year-2023-24, the Statement of Accounts has been prepared as per
Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) and was submitted to the Statutory Auditor for
audit. The Statutory Audit has been completed and Supplementary Audit by CAG has
been completed and final comments of the CAG received and the same enclosed with
the Annual Accounts.

DIVIDEND

The Functional management is going to place the agenda for recommendation of
dividend @7.5% on net profit after tax as per audited financial statements for the
financial year 2023-24 to all the shareholder subject to approval in upcoming 34th AGM.

GOVT. AUDIT REVIEW

As required under section 139(b) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Comments of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) on the Annual Accounts of the
Company for the year ended on 315t March, 2024 received.

MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
PNG BUSINESS:
Your Company has registered substantial growth in its PNG business. This growth is

contributed by incorporating newer areas under PNG coverage thus adding 3005 new
domestic consumers during the FyY-2023-24.
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TNGCL has identified new areas within the authorized Geographical Areas where PNG
connectivity is technically feasible and has laid mainline network which is envisaged to
bring in more consumers. With scarcity of LPG Cylinders and demand supply gap, PNG
has become preferred choice for consumers TNGCL is tirelessly working to provide
more PNG connection so that LPG can be freed for further distribution at much needed

rural areas.
Financial Year Number of Domestic Connections
2015-16 22615
2016-17 28669
zni}'_-tﬂ 34741
2018-13 39743
2019-20 44764
2020-21 49113
2021-22 54-&24'
2022-23 59131
2033-24 62136

COMMERCIAL PNG: TNGCL has been able to create consumer loyalty when it comes
to the choice of using PNG for commercial purposes. Over the years, PNG supplied by
TNGCL has become the No. 1 choice for small time entrepreneurs and commercial
units as preferred fuel which not only gives value for money and readily availability

but also adds to a cleaner environment. Up to FY 2023-24, total number of
commercial connections to 512.

Financial Year Number of Commercial Connections
20I540 iy 322
- :niﬁ-f?_ 3:66_
2017-18 415
2018-19 415
2019-20 430
202021 | 491
202122 497
2022-23 506
202324 512

INDUSTRIAL PNG: TNGCL has been instrumental in ensuring fuel sufficiency for
Industrial units in and around the city of Agartala including Industrial Growth center at

Bodhjungnagar. The Company is supplying round-the-clock PNG services to 48
industrial units.
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CNG BUSINESS: TNGCL has already commissioned 34 nos. of CNG stations for greener
and economical fuel in the state of Tripura and is supplying CNG to the Automobile
Sectors through its dedicated 05 Mother CNG Stations and 268 Daughter Booster
Stations where CNG is transported through LCVs meeting the demand of almost
50,000 nos Vehicles every day.

The Company have succeeded in creating CNG corridor of around 288 km

The CNG 5ales of the Company has increased from 42,593 kg per day to 69,397 kg per day
in the last 05 years as tabulated below

Financial Year CNG Sales (KG/ day)
2018-19 | 42593
2019-20 45773
2020-21 42952
2021-22 55511
2022-23 64237
2023-24 69397
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CNG Sales for Last 05 Years (KG)
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PHYSICAL INFRASTRUCTURE:

The Company has opened more areas under PNG Network within Agartala GA, thereby
covering almost 85% of the city. During 2023-24, TNGCL has been able to lay a total of 1501
KM of MDPE pipeline within the city area while providing PNG connections

Financial Year Total Length of MDPE | Increase YOY _(KM)
Pipeline (KM)
2015-16 622.00 | -
2016-17 74747 ' 125.47
201718 796.05 | 48.58
2018-19 836.06 _ 40.01
2019-20 876.23 ' 40.17
2020-21 880.60 4.37
2021-22 1209.20 328.60
202223 1434.4 ' 225.20
202324 . - L 66.6
Growth in Physical Infrastructure

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND ADEQUACY:

TNGCL has inter-departmental feedback mechanism in place making the operations
flexible. Again, usage and adoption of newer technologies in meter reading is making the
system more robust.
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HUMAN CAPITAL:

Total Number of TNGCL Employees
Executive = 12 nos.

Non- executive = 03 nos.

TOTAL employees =15 Nos.

SAFETY

HSE: During the year 2023-24, the Company has been proactive in implementing
HSE policy. Safety drills are organized frequently to keep all concerned ready for
any eventuality. There have been zero reportable incidences this year, once again
proving the safety consciousness of the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

During the year 2023-24, the Company has undertaken major CSR activities as per
CSR guideline and commitment of the Company and the Management has spent
Rs 65,24,638/- in CSR activities under section 135 of Companies Act, 2013.
Detailed Annexure-|.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of Corporate
Governance. The report on Corporate Governance forms an integral part of this
Report. The requisite certificate from the Secretarial Auditors of the Company
confirming compliance with the conditions of corporate governance.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no
reportable material weaknesses or some material weakness in the design or
operation were observed.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Since the Board comprised of the following members:-

SL - - Date of Date of
No. N Desig Appointment Cessation
) | Shn Gokul Chandra Chawrman & 30002019 1
| Swargiyan Director
Shn Goutam Chairman &
) 107 7
2 Chakraborty, ED (CGD), | Director 14012021 04.05.2023
3 | Shri A Anbarasan Managing Director 21062021 14.06.2024
; Director
4 | shri S.C.Reang (c arvial) 01.04.2023 -
5 | Shn Nabadal Banik C. o 13.04.2023 08.12.2023
Director
6 | Shn Sanjeev Kumar Director 04052023 —
7 | Smt Vishwasree B IAS | Darector 08122023 -
8 | Shri Pralay Patra Managine Director 15.06.2024

The Board pla{:ea on record its deep appreciation for the valuable contribution made by
Goutam Chakraborty, ED (CGD), GAIL during his tenure as Chairman (14.01.2021 to 01.10.2021)
and being Director of the Company who demitted office with effect from effective 04.05.2023.

The Board places on record its deep appreciation for the valuable contribution made by Shri
Nabadal Banik, Chairman, TIDCL during his tenure as Chairman (13.04.2023 to 09.11.2023) and
being Director of the Company who demitted office with effect from effective 08.12.2023.

The Board welcomed and noted the nomination of Shri Gokul Chandra Swargiyari, as Director
in Board (30.09.2019 to 30.11.2023) and AGCL has nominated Shri Gokul Chandra Swargiyari as
Hon’ble Chairman of the Board of TNGCL w.e.f. 30.11.2023.

The Board welcomed and noted the appointment of Shri 5.C. Reang, DGM (CGD-Project), GAIL
as Director (Commercial) in the Board of TNGCL w.e.f. 01.04.2023.

The Board welcomed and noted the nomination/appointment of Shri Sanjeev Kumar, CGM
(R&D Startup & Renew), GAIL as Director in the Board of TNGCL w.e.f. 04.05.2023.

The Board welcomed and noted the nomination/appointment of Smt. Vishwasree B., |AS, TIDCL
as Director in the Board of TNGCL w.e.f. 08.12.2023.
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The Board places on record its deep appreciation for the valuable contribution made by Shri A.
Anbarasan, Managing Director of the Company during his tenure, who demitted office with
effect from 14.06.2024.

The Board welcomed and noted the nomination/appointment of Shri Pralay Patra, GM, GAIL as
Managing Director in the Board of TNGCL w.e.f. 15.06.2024.

Attendance of each Director at Board Meeting

Total meetings Meetings

ShNo Rama held attended
1 Shri Nabadal Banik - 5
2 Shri A. Anbarasan 7 7
3 5.C. Reang 7 7
4 Shri Gokul Chandra Swargiyari, 7 4
__5 | Shri Goutam Chakraborty 1 .
6 | Shri Sanjeev kumar 6 5
7 smit. Vishwasree B., IAS 2 1

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD:

Seven meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year. Details of the Board
Meeting has been given below-

Number of Board Meetings held and dates on which held:

No. of Board meeting Date Place
11g*h 26.04.2023 Agartala
120" 27.07.2023 Agartala
121% 22.08.2023 Agartala
122 25.09.2023 Agartala
123" 00.11.2023 ﬂgartala
124" 05.01.2024 Shillong
125" 12.03.2024 Agartala

EOARD EVALUATION:

As per the MCA Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated bth June, 2015, provisions of section
134(3)(p) shall not apply, in case the Directors are evaluated by the Ministry, which is
administratively in charge of the Company as per its own evaluation methodology. As
TNGCL is subsidiary and Government Company, disclosure requirement in respect of
Board evaluation process is not applicable to the Company.
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INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The provisions of the section 149 of the companies Act, 2013 regarding the
appointment of Independent Director is not applicable to the Company as the
Company does not fall under the class of Companies required to appoint Independent
Director. However, as the Company is the Subsidiary, Joint Venture & Government
Company all the appointments are made by the Promoters. In view of the same the
Company has not taken initiative for the same.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:
Extract of Annual Return of the Company is annexed herewith as Annexure -ll to this
Report in the form MGT-9 as per the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS" REPORT

STATUTORY AUDITORS

TNGCL is a Joint Venture Company & thus required to get its A/C’s Audited by an
Auditor duly nominated by CAG. For the FY-2023-24, CAG has nominated and
Shareholders and the Board appointed, M/s D Das & Kamaluddin, Chartered
Accountants, Agartala.

Board of Director fixed the remuneration fees of Rs. 1,60,000 (Rupees one Lac sixty
thousand only) excluding GST and Rs.70,000 per quarter excluding GST.

For the Financial Year-2023-24, the Statement of Accounts has been prepared as per
Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) and was submitted to the Statutory Auditor. The
Statutory Auditor has been completed and the Audited Statement of Accounts has
been submitted to CAG as Annexure -1l

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR:
Since the Company is a Subsidiary & Government Company, the Independent Auditor

is nominated by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C & AG) as per Section
139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013.

For Financial year 2024-25, CAG has not yet nominated/recommended the Statutory
Auditor of the Company. Once CAG recommends the Statutory Auditor for Financial
Year 2024-25, the same shall be placed before shareholders at 34th Annual General
Meeting to decide and fix the remuneration of the Statutory Auditor.
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AUDIT OBSERVATION:
The Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-
explanatory and enclosed along with financial statement.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS:

Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company
appointed M/s Biman Debnath & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries to
undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24. The
Secretarial Audit report has been submitted and enclosed as Annexure-IV.

COST AUDITOR:

Pursuant to provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
appointed M/s Mani & Co., Cost Accountants on in its 121st Board Meeting as Cost
Auditor to prepare and submit the Cost Audit Report with the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs for the 2023-24. The Cost Audit report of the Company duly has already been
fited.

INTERNAL AUDIT:

The Internal Audit is carried out by a reputed external firm of Chartered Accountants.
M/s A.K.Pal & Associates ,Agartala has conducted the Internal Audit of the Company for
the Financial Year 2023-24.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES & INVESTMENT U/S 186:
The Company has not given any loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of
section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

DISCLOSURES:

CSR Committee

CSR Committee consists of the following members as approved by the Board:
1.Managing Director- Chairman

2.Director (Commercial)- Member

3.Managing Director of TIDCL/Director nominated by AGCL in Board of TNGCL-
Member.




PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the
Financial Year with Related Parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an
arm’s length basis. Relevant information is placed in Financial statement.

MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY:

For the Financial Year-2023-24, the Statement of Accounts has been prepared as per
Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) and was submitted to the Statutory Auditor for
audit. The Statutory Audit has been completed and the Final Comments of CAG is yet
to receive. There were no such material changes and commitments in the Company
which could affect the financial position from the date of the financial statements of
the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24 till the date of signing this report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

Your Company has always been taking proper steps for the conservation of energy
keeping in mind the fact regarding the scarcity of energy in Country.

Your Company has also been trying to keep itself technologically updated from time to
time.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
During the year, there have been no transactions affecting the direct foreign exchange
earnings and outgo of the Company.

Company’s Policy relating to Director’s Appointment, Payment of Remuneration and
Discharge of their Duties:

As per JVA, Article of Associations of the Company, GAIL is to nominate 3 Directors and
AGCL and TIDC one each in the board of TNGCL. Managing Director and Director
(Commercial)-2 whole time Executive Directors are to be nominated by GAIL on
Secondment basis. Others are Non- Executive Directors. Chairman will be the whole
time Director of GAIL and Chairman of AGCL and TIDC on 2 years rotation basis.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:
Industrial relations were cordial and harmonious throughout 2023-24.
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BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Campany is taking appropriate steps for the reduction of risk at every level of
operation of the Company. The Company manages, monitors and reports on the
principal risks and uncertainties that can impact its ability to achieve its strategic
objectives.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE POLICY:

As the provisions of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the
Company, the Company has not taken any steps for the formation of the same.
However, the Board is taking advice and consultation from the Statutory Auditor of the
Company from time to time as and when required regarding the same.

DISCLOSURE ON ESTABLISHMENT OF A VIGIL MECHANISM:

Chief Vigilance Officer of GAIL (India) Limited has been entrusted to look after
Vigilance function of TNGCL. Accordingly, your company complies with the pericdic
reporting required under vigilance mechanism. The Company has a Whistle Blower
Policy whereby stakeholders can raise concerns to the competent authority in case
they observe any unethical behaviour and corrupt practices. Necessary safeguards for
the protection of the whistleblowers from reprisals or victimization is also ensured.

To ensure transparency, equity and competitiveness in public procurement, your
company has adopted Integrity Pact (IP) in its tenders having an estimated value 1.0
Crore and above. For implementation of IP, your company has appointed Independent
External Monitors (IEM) as per recommendation given by Central Vigilance Commission
(CVC).

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace is in place. Your
company taking the necessary steps to constitute Internal Complaint Committee (ICC)
under provision of The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal), Act, 2013. There were no cases reported for Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace during the Financial Year 2023-24.
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FRAUD PREVENTION POLICY:

The Fraud Prevention Policy is in place. To ensure that Management is aware of its
responsibilities for detection & prevention of fraud and for establishing procedures for
preventing fraud and/ or detecting fraud whenever it occurs, to provide a clear
guidance to employees and others dealing with TNGCL forbidding them from carrying
on such activities where they suspect any fraudulent activity has arisen and the action
to be taken by them where they suspect any fraudulent activity and other actions as
proposed by the committee.

The policy will apply to any fraud or suspected fraud involving TNGCL employees (all
full time, part time or appointed on ad-hoc/ temporary / contract basis), employees in
TNGCL on secondment basis from other Companies as well as representatives of
vendors, suppliers, contractors, consultants, lenders, service providers or any outside
agency(ies) doing any type of business with TNGCL.

GENERAL DISCLOSURES:

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the
following items as there were no transactions on these items during the year under
review:

1. Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.

2. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

3. lIssue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under
any scheme save and except E50S referred to in this Report.

4. No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or
Tribunals which impact the going concern status and Company's operations in future.

DIRECTORS  RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
In accordance with Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors of Tripura
Natural Gas Company Limited confirms that:

a)ln the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2024, the
applicable accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule 1l to
the Act, have been followed and there are no material departures from the same;

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently

and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and of the

profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;
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c)The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d)The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a "going concern’ basis;

e)The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the
Company and that such internal financial controls are adeguate and are operating
effectively; and

fiThe Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Directors express their gratitude to the Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas,
Petroleum and Natural Gas Regulatory Board, State Government of Tripura and the
Promoter Companies (GAIL, TIDC, AGCL) for their continuous patronage throughout
the year.

The Directors also acknowledge the support of all Statutory & local authorities,
Bankers, Media, Contractors, Vendor and Suppliers.

The Directors place on record their deep appreciation towards TNGCL’s valued
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The Directors wish to express their gratitude to all the shareholders for their continued
trust and support.

The Directors also sincerely acknowledge the contributions made by all the employees
of TNGCL for their dedicated services to the Company.

sd/
Gokul Chandra Swargiyari
(CHAIRMAN)
Date:
Place: Agartala
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Annexure-l

1.BRIEF OUTLINE OF CSR POLICY AND PROJECTS OR PROPOSED PROGRAMMES TO BE
UNDERTAKEN.

Your Company being a socially responsible and environment friendly organization has
always strived for creation of value in the society & community where it is carrying out its
operations through meaningful & sustainable CSR initiatives. In terms of the provisions of
Section 135 and CSR rules therein, CSR policy has been framed covering major thrust areas
as mentioned in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013.

2.CSR COMMITTEE OF BOARD

In compliance with the provisions of Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the CSR
Committee of the Board comprises of Managing Director- Chairman, Director (Commercial)-
Member and Managing Director of TIDCL/Director nominated by AGCL in Board of TNGCL-
Member as members in CSR committee. Based on the 2% of the average of the net profits
made during the 3 immediately preceding years, Rs 65,24,638/- was available for taking up
CSR projects in FY 2023-24, as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and various
projects outlined in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013.

3.AVERAGE NET PROFIT FOR LAST THREE FINANCIAL YEARS Year Net Profits.

Finance has confirmed the following fund availability for FY 2023-24, accumulated two per
cent. of the average net profits of the company made during the three immediately
preceding financial years

Profit of FY (PBT) 2020-21- Rs. 30,78,04,990
Profit of FY(PBT) 2021-22- Rs. 37,50,06,959
Profit of FY(PBET) 2022-23- Rs. 29,58,33,/05
Total Rs. 97,86,95,654
3 years average PBT Rs. 32,62,31,885

2% of Average Net Profit (PBT) of preceding O3 financial years is Rs. 65,24,638

2% of Average Net profit (PBT) of preceding 3 financial years for CSR is as per the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 is Rs 65b,24,638/- available for CSR activities for FY 2023-24.

4 PRESCRIBED CSR EXPENDITURE (TWO PERCENT OF THE AMOUNT AS IN ITEM 3)
The prescribed CSR expenditure for FY 2023-24 as per provisions of Companies Act, 2013
was Rs 65,24,638/-.

el
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5. DETAILS OF CSR SPENDS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Total amount spent in the Financial Year 2023-24 is Rs 65,24,638/-.
Amount unspent during Financial Year 2023-24, if any-: NIL/-

6. Manner in which the amount spent during the Financial Year is detailed below:

1 3 3 4 5 & 2 8
Sr. | CSR project or | Sector In which | Profect  or | Amount | Amoont | Cumulative | Amount Spent
No. | activity the project Is | program w | outlay spent on | expenditure | Direct or
Identified covered Local area | (Budget) | the upto to the | implementing
2. Specify | project | project | reporting | Authority
the  state | or or period
and district | program | program
wise.
1 Mis Eradicating Bishalgarh | 7,120,000 | 720,000 | 720,000 Direct I
Vivekananda poverty, hunger Sepahilala
Sishuniketan, and mamutrition, Tripura
Bishalgarh promoting  health
Sepahijala, care which
Tripura, includes sanitation
providing lron | and preventive
Removai Plant | health care,
and 10 Nos | contribution to the
Desktop Swach Bharat Kosh
Computer sot-up by the
Syatam Central
Government  for
the promotion of
wanit@ticn and
making available
aafe drinking waler
and Improvement
In education which
Includes  special
education and
employmant
strangthening
vocation skills
ameng  children,
women,  eldarly
and the differently
Fhied and
liwefihood
enhancement
projects,
2 Hesd Master | Eradicsting West 1,70,000 | 1,70,000 | 890,000 Dmect
Potunagsr HS | poverty, hunger and Tripurs
School under | malnuorition
Wast Tripura | promoting  heahth
for providing | care which includes
Ircn Eemevsl | wanitation and
Plant with oms | preventive health
storags tank of | care, comribution 1o
1000 Lir | the Swach Bhara
capacity Kosh set-up by the
Central
Govemmeatt for the
promotion of
Lanjtation and
makins  zvailable
safe drinkine water

T
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Llnuhtlu
upto to the
period

Direct or

Office of the DM
and Collector,
Sepahifala District
for arrangement of
Fund for providing
skill Development
traiming to the
wamen for their
Sustainable
liveliheod

Improvement  in
education which
includes  special
education  and
employment
strengthening
vocation skills
among children,
women, elderly
and the
differently-abled
and livelirood
enhancement
projects.

10,000,000

10,00,000

18,090,000

Direct

Financial assistance
for the (ricket
Tournament 2024
organized by
Ramesh Sacial
Centre which s &
nationally
recognized sport

Training to
stimulate  rural
sports, nationally
recognized
sports,
Paralympic sports
and Olympic
sporis.

Udaipur
Tripura

5,00,000

500,000

13,900,000

Direct

Tripura Puppet
Theatre for Gaold
Sponsorship of Rs.3
lakh for the Tripura
International
Puppet  Utsav'zg
scheduled to be
held from z26th
February,z024 to
28th February,zo24
which is a festival to
be set to be 3
landmark cultura!
event, showcasing
the diversity and
richness of the
puppetry from
around the globe

Protection of
national heritage,
art and culture
including
restoratian of
buildings and
sites of historical
importance -and
works of art,
setting up public
libraries;
promation  and
development of
traditional arts
and handicrafts

Agartala,
Tripura

300,000

300,000

10,90,000

Direct
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1 3 3 4 5 L] 7 8
Sr. | CSR  project or | Sector in which the | Project or | Amount | Amount | Cumulative | Amount Spent
No. | actlvity identified | project Is covered | program | outlay spent on | expenditure | Direct or
t.  Local | (Budget) | the upto to the | Implementing
area project or | project or | reporting | Authority
2. Speclfy | program | program | perlod
the state | wise.
and district
& Financlal Support | improving gender | Agarala, 258,700 2,58,%00 29,48,100 Direct
to Abalamban for | equality, setting up Tripura
doing Tiles | homes and hostels
covering on the | for women and
court yard of the | orphans, setting up
old -age home | old age homes, day
Apnaghar care centres and
such other fadllties
for senior citizens
and measures for
reducing
inequalitles  faced
by soclafly and
economicaily
backward groups.
) Fund Provided for | Improvement in | Mohanpur, | 12,00,000 | 12,00,000 | 41.48,100 Direct
Computer Lzb In| education which Tripura
Swami Vivekanda | includes spacial
Mahavidvataya for | education and
improvement of | employment
better aducational | strengthening
knowledge to Sub- | vocation skilis
Divislonal among childran,
Magistrate, womaen, 2lderly and
Maohanpur the differenthy-
ahled and livellhood
enhancement
projects.
8 | Fund Provided for | Eradicating poverty, | Mohanpur, | 1356538 1356538 | 5504,638 Direct
3 mos. of Iron | hunger and | Tripura
removal plants | malnutrition,
[@As55 Lakhs | promoting  health
{approx.) in 3 nos. | care which Includes
o different Schools | sanltation and
under Mohanpur | preventive health
Assembly care, contribution
Constitwency for| tothe Swach Bharat
drinking water | Kosh set-up by the
facllities for the | Central
students Covernment for the
promation of
sanitation and
making  available
safe drinking water
welfare,

A
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promotion of sanitation
and making available
safe drinking water

1 2 3 4 5 & 7 8
Sr. | CSR project | Sector in which the | Projector | Amount | Amount | Cumulative | Amount Spent
MNo.  or  activity | projectis covered program | outlay spent on | expenditure | Direct or
Identified 1. Local | (Budget) | the upta to the | Implementing
area project or | project or | reporting Authority
2. Specify | program | program | period
the state | wise.
and
district
g Fund Provided | Eradicating poverty, | West 10.20.000 10, 20,000 65,724,638 | Direct
for 06 nos Iron | henger and maloutrition Tripura
Removal Plant | promoting  health  care
for SC / ST | which inecludes
Hostel by the | sanitation and
Dt and | preventive health care,
Collector, confribution  to  the
West Tripura, | Swachlh Bharat Kosh
set-up by the Cenmal
Government  for  the

7. REASON FOR LESS THAN STIPULATED EXPENDITURE: Not Applicable.

8. RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT OF THE CSR COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD
This is to certify that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in
compliance with the CSR objectives and Policy of the Company and the CSR
objectives as provisioned under Section 135 of the Companies, Act, 2013.
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FORM NOUMGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANMUAL RETURN
As an finandal year ended on 31.03.2024

Pursuant o Section 82 (3} of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12{1) of the Company [Management & Administration] Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION B OTHER DETAILS:

1 [am |uzz201TI9908 50003451

4 |Registration Date 10.07 19590

3 |Name of the Company TRITURA NATUHRAL GAS 0D LD

i |Category/Sub.category of the Company Campany Limited by shares
State government company

5 |ddress of Ue Reglalered offace & contact detsil | Shiipla Nigarm Bhawan, Klseperbagae, Kunjsban, Agartala, Triprue 790008

6 |Email r line.

7 |Phone No: 03E1-2418 168

8 |Whether listed company [8in —

9 |Marne, Address & contact details of the Rogistrar & Alankit Assigmments Lid

Trangfer Aue_:l:, IF .

il, PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

&l the business activities contributing 10 % or mare of the Lotal iumnoser of the eompany shall be stated]

5 Mame and Rescnption of main producss ¢ services HIC Code of the % to total tumover of the company
Mo Product/service
1 Extraction of crude petroleum and natuwral gas E102 100
[l PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
5M MNarni and address of Lhe Compary CINSGLM Hualding/ Subisldiary,’ BT Applicatle
Aszaciate/ Joint Venture shares Section
haid
1 GAIL {INDIA] LIMITED LANZODLISEIGOINI B3 76 Holding 48,98 AT
2 ASSAN GAS COMPANY LTD 111084519625GE0011E4) Joint Venture 25.51 A
3 | TREPUHA INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD [75112TR1074560001491) lains Verture F5.51 NA
[Iv.  SHARE HOLDHNG PATTERN |

{Equity share capltal breakup as p!m!ﬂﬁ-ﬁ.;ﬁ of total equity)
(I} Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Moo, of Shares held at the baginnmg of the year o, of Shares held at the end of the year % Changs during the
Sharehalders [As an 01 April-2022] [A5 on 31-March-20213] yaar
Demat Avsical Taotal W of Total Demat Physical Tatal ool Total
Shares Shares

A. Promaters

|1} Indian

a) individual/ HUF -] E 0.03% ‘B B 0,00 0.00%
ib] Central Govt E 003 = 0.1 L1.CHIE
¢} State Govt(s| . (0. 00%: - 0.00% 0,00
d] Gowt 14,639,388 | 1530604 20959990 | 100.00% 1465380 | 15304604 | 2999992 | 100.00% 0,043
8] Bodles Caop £ (.00 - 0.0 0.00%
1] Banks / Fi - £ 0% - 0.0 0,008
(8] Ay other = 0.00% - 000 0.00%
Swh Total (4] {1] 14,608,388 15.50,612 300,00, 000{ 0000 TLBEAR  1580,612]  30,00,000) 100,00k 0.0
12] Foreign

2] NAI Indhiduzls - (.00% - 0,00 00U
] Other - 0. 00%: = 0.00% 0.0k
¢} Bodies Corp. - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
d] Ay othes - 0.D0% - 0.00% 0.00%
Suk Total [A] |2] 1,001, 0.0 0,000

TOTAL (4] 14,69,368  15,30,612 30,00,000f 100.00% 1469388 15306120 30,00,000{ 100.00% 0.00%

B Public
1. tnstitibions.

3] Mutual Funds - (. 00% - 0.00% 0.0
b} Banks} FI - 0,005 = 0.0 0.00%
c} Contral Govt - 0.00%, - 0.00% 0,000
d| State Goviis) - 0 DO% - 0.00% 0.00%
] Verdure Capstal (00 0.0 0.00%
1] Indistance - 0.00% - 0004 0,00
IFls ] . | moow] . T | oo 0.01%

Iy Faresgn - 000%: - 0.00% 0.00%
Venture Capital

I} Drthers {spécily) F 0.00% = 0.00% 0.00%
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Sulb-voral [BH1):- E c! 000 | 427 * - & 0. 00% Q.00
2, Na-
a| Dodies Carp
i} Enclian .00 32 .00 0,005
[} Brveraeas : TLOH B 0.00% 1.07%
) Individuals
i} bndividual - .00 - - 000 .008
sharehalders
halding naminal
shiare capital upto
ifin. 1 lzih
i} Inflinritdu = - = 000 - - .00% 0.000%
sharehaldars
halding naminal
share capital o
excassof Bs 1 Rkh
| Qthers {specify]
Han Hesident - (01.00% - 0.0 0.60%
Crnrseas v .00 = 100% .00
Corporate Bodins
Foreign Nationals - .00 - 000 0.007%
Clearing Marmbers . 0, M . 0.00% 1,107
Trusts .00 ¥ 0.00% Q.90
Fosrisign Badies - O (LN - (AN .00
Sub-total [BHZ)- - - - DL - - - D00% 0,000
Total Public (B) - - ] - - - 0.00% 0,004
€. Shares held by + 0% .00 0,005
Custodian for
GORs & ADR»
Grand Total 14,565,388 15,30,612 30,00,000 | 100.00% 14,65,388 15.30,612 34,00, 000 100.00% 0.00%
{il} Shareholding of Pramoter

5M Sharehalder's Name Skarehalding st the beginnng of the yesr Shareholding 21 the 2nd of the year % change in

sharehalding during he
Wa. of Sharés | of otal| HofShares (Mo, of Shares] % of toted |5 of Shares aar
Sharesaf|  Pledged/ Shares of tha| Pledged /
tha mncumbered 1o cempany | esmumbarn
company | tolalshares d i iokal
shares

1 Assam Gas oo Lid 1468303 2551% 7,85,302 2551% 0,00
|2 fpura Irlldu_:_tl'_lﬂ Dm_'gEEmem Cargoratson L 745 3012 25__511!- ?,Fﬁ.ing 1551 1, 00F% |

3 GAlLndi] Lid, 1460 305] 4808 14,59, 288 25 00% (.00,

Hominees of Promaolers Le, Asaarmn Gas
4 Cormpany Limited & Trpura Industral # REr H CL0EM [ANATE
Development Carparation Limited
Total I000000| 100005 30,00, 000 100.00%

i e i Frooreders” Shareheiding § icese specify, f ihere i mn changed: Mot Appltcobis
v Sharcholding Pattern of top fen Shareholiders fother thamn rectors, Promerters and Holdees of GDRx and ADRx): Nor A pplicable
v Nkereholding of INvecrers and Koy Monageeiol Pecsonuel; NIL

[V iNDEBTEDNESS |
Indebledness of the Company including mterest outstending/accrued but pot due for payment

(At As, /Lacs|
Particul#rs Secured Loans sxcluding Unsecured boans Deposiis Totwl Indebledness
degasits
Indebtedness ol the beginning of the financial year
if_Precipal Amount
M| Interest due but not paid
Uiy Intorevt accreed but not-due
Total {i+ii=iii]
Change in Indebtedneas durlng the financial year
* Addilion - -
b R_quzl!nr!
Met Change
Indobtodness at the end of tho financial yoar
i} Principal Amount
il Intarest due bul not paid

Wiy Intorest aponued byt not dse . .
Tutal {i+wiHii| - - - -
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413

[VL REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL ;

A. Remuneration to Managing Directar, Whote-time Directars snd/or Manager:

AN

Particulars of Remuneration

Hame of MD/WTDS Managor

Total Amount

MName

A . Anbarasan

5.C. Reang

{RslLac)

Designatian

Managing Director

Director {Commercial
WD

Gross salary

{a} Salary as per provislons contained In section 17{1) of the Income-tax
Act, 1961

B6,24,811.38

54.86,704.50

1411151538

{b] Yalue of perguisites ufs 172} income-tax Act, 18961

(] Profits in lew of salary under section 17]3] Income- tax Act, 1961

Stock Dption

Sweat Equity

Commission
- &8 '% of profit
- others, specily

Others, pleasa specify

Tetal [A)

86,24, 811.38

54,86,704.50

1,41,11,515.88

Celling as per the Act

B Rermuneration to other Directors 1 NA

SN,

Particulars of Remuneration

Mame af Directors

Total Amount

{Ra/Lac}

Indnpandent Directars

Fee for attending board committee

Commlssion

Cthars, please specify

Total(l] =

Cither Non-Executhve Directors

Fes for attending board commitiee

Ciom mission

Others, please specly

Tatal (2]

Total (Bl=[1-2) S

Totsl Managerial Remunerstion

1,41,11,515.88

Overall Coiling a5 por the Act

C Remunaration 1o Key Managesial Personnel other than MO/Manager W TD -

SN

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Key Managerial Perscnnel

Total Amount

Name HfA

Subrata Debnath

Pradeep Kumar Mahato

R

Diesignation CED

CFO

Company Secretary

Gross salary

(a} Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17{1}of the Income-tax Act, 1961

37,31,146.00

16,05,201.00

53,97,047.00

{b] Walue of perquisites wf's 17{2}) Income-
tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of walary under section
I7(3| Income- tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

Swest Equity

Com mission

- 84 % af prafit

- pthers, specify

Others, please specify

Tatal =

a7 91,146:00

16,05.901.00

53,97,047.00
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Vil. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: - N.A.

Typs

Saction of
tha
Companies
Act

Brief Description

Dotails of Panalty /
Punishment/
Compounding feas
imposad

Authority [RD / NCLT/
COURT]

Appaeal made, if any (give Details)

A. COMPARNY

Peralty

Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

€. OTHER DFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compaunding
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DDAS & KAMALUDDIN
\ CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Ta the Members of Tripura Natural Gas Company Limited
(CIN: U23201TR1920SGC003451)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Tripura Natural Gas
Company Limited (CIN: U23201TR1990SGC003451), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31
March 2024, the sratement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the statement of
cash flows and the starement of changes in equity for the vear then ended, and notes to the standalone

Ind AS financial swiements, including a summary of agnificant sccounting policies and other
explandtory information,

In gur epnion and o the best of our information and according to the explansions piven to us, the
aforesaid standalooe Tnd AS financial staternents give the information required by the Companies Aet, 2013
. a5 amended in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformirty with the accounting
principles generally accepied in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and profit
including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash fows for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted oue audit in sceordance with the Standards on Auditng (8As) specified under secuun
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are farther described in the
Audiror’s Responsibilines for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in aceordance with the Code of Fihics issued by the Institure
of Chartered Accountants of India wgether with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our sudit of
the fimancil statements under the provisions of the Companies Aet, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethucal. responsibilities 1 accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obrained is sufficient and appropate to provide a basis
for pur audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS finaneinl seatements.

Emphasis of Matter
Attention is invited 1o following notes of the standalone IND AS financial statement:

4) Refer Note 18B to this report regarding the revenue recognition, the company has «
policy at the end of the financial year for domestic customer of which meter reading is not
done/ wrang meter reading was done, then the customer can change the bill up to 15" May
of Next year. The amount of actual billing was uncerrain. As per explanation and
representation given by the management, the effect of such will not be material.

b} Refer Note 38 regarding the Impairment of Assets, the company has identified assets not
in use during the course of physical verification of property, plant & machinery conducred
oni31.03.2022 by the munugement bur the value of such assets not in use could not ascerrain
and (he company is not in a position ro declare it as a scrape. Impairment loss eannot be
ascertained and not charged to profit & loss durdng the year. As per explination and
representation given by the management, the effect of such will not be marerial.

¢) Refer Note 8 regarding the interest and penalty recovered from defaulting consumer, the
compuny has no 1T system regarding identification the amount recerved as interest/ penalty
from customer. The company adjust the whole amount with sundry debtors. As per
explination and representation given by the management, the effect of such will not be
material.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of sbove marter.

Cffice : "MOON PLAZA" Phone :({033) 2264-4432 a 2| Branch at :
62, Lenin Sarani, 3rd Floar E-mail : ddaskamaluddin®gmail.com\ ¢ -EF Asansal
Kolkata - 700013 Websile : www.ddaskamaluddin.cam %mﬁ“& Agartaia



Key Audit Matters

CONTINUATION SHEET

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the fnanecial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit af the fnancial statements as 2 whaole, and in forming our apinion therson, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these mutters. We have determined the matters described below to he the key audit

matters 1o he communicated in our report!

KEY AUDIT MATTERS RESPONSE TO KEY AUDIT MATTER
AS1 We assessed the Company’s process to identify the
(Revenne Reopgnition) impact of adoption of the sevenue accounting standard
Ind  As 115 cswblshes o fvesstep g ehuphuc-lh. Sppemcn ot veeonitng: polics.

moddel w0 pecount Tor sevenne ansing  from
CEILIacTs with CHSIOmers,
Uinder Ind AS 115, revenue 5 mecogmsed pt an
AmGUnT rhat reficcts the
consideration 1o which an entity expects to be
entitled ] in txcharnge ot
transterning poods o services 1o a customer,

An enry shall recopnise the amount of allocared
Framsac Jm'q:: 0% FEVEOILE ONce i p:r['-_mn;mer
obliganon s satisfied. Transaction poce which
can be fixed or varable amount s determined
based on the terms of confract and enon's
customary pricnce.

Applieation of the tevenve accountng standard
mvolves certain key  judgements  reladng 1o
identfication of distinet perfarmance obligations,
determmanon of  rmnsaction price  of  the
idennfied perfimmmnde uhligslinm-, the
sppropratensss of the basiz used 10 mensure
revenue recopnized over . penod. Additonally,
revenue geoountmg seundard ennains

disclosures which mvalve collstion of nformation
in respect of disapgrepated revenue and penods
over  which  the vemmining  performance
abligaticoms will be

satisticd subsequent oo the balance shees date.

Refer Note number 185

Our ancit approach comsweted  testing of destpn and
aperatng elfectveness of the mrernal controls as follows:

I, Evaluated the design of internal controls velsting o
mmplemeniation

of the revenue aceounting standard, wherever spplicable.
2 Seleeted o vample of continuing and new contescts, and
tested the operating effectiveness of the internal contrul,
relating 1o dentficaton of the dsancr performance
oblgatuons and determinanon of trangacton prce, We
carded out a combinaton of procedures involving
eneguiry and observation, re-performance and impecton
of evidence in respect of operaton of these contrals.

% Teated the relevant wuformation technology Rystcms’
access: and change management controls relubng o
contracts and reloted mformation wsed in

recording and disclosing revenue in accardance

with the revenue aceounting standard,

We have venfied the invoices mised during the period
and rallied it with the billing system maintained by the
company,

Conclusion

In this repard we did not find any materin]l exception.
Fxcept The company has booked the revenue from its
domestic customer at the year end on a provision
basis for those consumers whose meter reading were
not done/wrang meter reading has doneffor other
reasons, but the company has billing system on which
these bills are editable till 15" May of the next
financlal year.

AL & KAMALUDDIN
CHARTERED ACCOLINTANTS



CONTINUATION SHEET

Evaluation of impact of related party
uansaction (INIY AS 24)

Related party relationships are a normal feature of
commerce and business.

A related party relationship could have an effect
i the profit or loss and Bnaneisl posigon of an
ennty, Related parties may enter into tansactions
that unrelated parties would not. For example, an
entlty that sells gowds to i parent at cost might
not sell on thote terms th another customer. Alsa,
transacions between related partics may not be
made b the same amounts as between wnreiuted
partiés

Refer Note Nao 27

We have conducted the following checks to verify the
matter;

e Venfication of purchase invoices were made to
form an opinion regarding the authenticity of the
transactions between Tripura Nateal Gas Co
Ltd and its holding compuny GAIL India Lid.

* The company has obtained two properties of
TICL, we have checked the avalable
agreement with TTIRCL.

* Balece confinmations were obtmned feom the
holding company regarding the balances as on
31032024

o TProper disclosure in the financial statement 18
given as per the requirement of TNTY AS 24

Conclusion

In this regard we did not find any matenal excepuon
except the company has not passed any Board resclution
regarding Related party transacton and also MBP-4 has
not been mainouned.

Evaluation of accuragy of Inventary
Movement and Valuation (INTY AS 2)

Inventories are assets:

{a) held for sule in the ordinaty couse of
business,

{ly) in the process of producton for such sale;

{¢) in the form of matemals or supplies to be
comsmied i the producton process or in the
rendering of services.

Measurement of inventories :
Inventaries shall be measured at the lower af cost
and net realisable valuc.

Cost of inventories

The cost of invenrories shall comprse all costs of
purch::.ﬁc,, costy of conversion aﬂd other costs
mcurred in bringing the inventones to their
present lncation and condition.

Refer Nate Na 7

We have conducted the following checks to venfy the
praciil= b

o  We have wvedfied the movement of the stock
from stock register of the penod.

o Valuation of Inventary s made on FIFO basis
wisd the sume has been verified by us,

® Checks were made 1o venfy whether any other
cost are included in the valuation for inventory
which is to be excluded us per INI AS 2

¢ Stores and spare and other matenal for use in
production of myventories are valued a weighted
averape cost or net realizable value, whichever is
lower. It is valved at weighted average cost
where the finished poods in which they wall be
incorporated are expected to be sold at/or above
cost.

¢ Valunnon of closing stock of finished Goods ace
taken as per the Cost and Net Realisable Value
whichever 15 Lower.

o Surplus/ chbsolete stores and spares are valued
coet o aet replizable value, whichever is lower,

BDAS & KAMALUDDIE
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e The stock of Gas in pipelines and in tmnks m
NG /PNG sttion is not held for the purpose
of producing or providing greods and services as
contemplated in AS 10, The stock ges in pipe
lines and tanks is held in the process of
production, and the stock of finished products in
pipelines and the stock in tanks of fimshed
products is meant for sale in ordinary coutse af
business. Aceordingly, the stock of Cias in
pipelines and tanks is an inventory 83 per AS 2
and not a Property, Plant & Fgupment.

Conclusion
I this regurd, we did not find any material exception.

Going concern assumption. finaneial
manggement

The availability of sufficient fund and festung
whether the company will be able w conunue

meeting its obligations under the financing
covenants are important far the geing concern
assumpton and, as such, are sipnificant aspects of

onr-aadit

This test of assessment is lirgely based on the
expectations of and the estimates made by
management, The expectations and estimates can
be influenced by subjective clements such as
estimated future cash fows, forecasted results and
fmatging from operations.

Fetinules are based on sssumptions, including
expectations regarding futare developments in the
cconomy and the market.

\We have evaluated the assumptions and forecasts made
by the management including the challenges faced under
the COVID-19 scenano.

Nothing has come to our noce which indicates any
hindrance on the poing concemn of the company.

The company is a PSL.

ROU leaschold Assets

Ind As 116 "Leases” was notified on 30.03.2019
by MCA and made effecuve from 01 042019, Ind
AS 116 introduces a single accounting madel for
accounting of all lease agreements and requires
lessee to recogmse @ oght of use asset
representing its tight to use the underdymng leased
psset and a Jesse lahiliy  representing  its
obligation to make leasc payment.

The company hus total 19 leaschald property
during Financial Yeur 2023-24,

The company has a ROU leaschold immavable property
in form of Counter 5t CNG station, A.D INagar, Agaruala
Udatpur Road, Agartala-T99003 with a rent of Rs
45288/ pm. dunng Financal Year 202324, The
company 13 treating this renml property as petpefual
leasehold immovable propesty. Leasc agreement between
the company (Lessee) and TIDCL (Lessor) duly executed
i favour of the lessee are not held on record the
COMMPATLY,

However, the company is i Puulcssinn aof sich
ummovable properry during the Financial year.

Determination of the quantity of Nawral Gas
sold and in stock throdgh pas-pipelines mvolves
use of vadous technieal aspects of the na

such #¢ pressure, femperdiuie Cic CApTUTre

W

Reler Note Ma 36 Hewever, no ather material discrepancies observed.
w—ﬂmw { Na Ian !.mn i We have applied the following audit procedures in this
s regard:
o ted o We hove performed test controls, assisted by out
mﬂmﬂlﬂﬂl I'T Specinliﬁt. over the aecuracy and

completeness of quantity caprured via IT system
through to ccounting software.
e We have obtained mamspement representation

Ai:',;j jhat the TT system applies & stundard
.-,.}&(- #% methodalogy to capture the quantry of nararal |

DHAS & KAMALUDDIN
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the mensuning devices ingtalled on the gas pas for the purposes of revenue and imventory
pipelines.  We  were informed  that  the MEasUFEmEnt

mithodology i standard and used industry-wide. e  We have verified valuaton of closing inventories
This ncreases the complesaty of  validaong by “PP]']d-n:E VAOGUS A5peCts rade pyailable to us
quantity of Natural Gas sold and stock in pipeline

ae at March 31, 2024,

Other Matters

During the financial yeas 2023-24, approval of the competent authority for legal action hus been issued for
151 cases for disconnected/ defiulted consumers and for the remaining cases approval for legal acon from
the competent authority are under process, Our opigion in respect thereof is solely based on the management
certified informaton, According to the information and explinations gven o us by the company’s
management, these are not materal the company.

Our opinion is aot modified in respect of this matter
Information other than the Finaneial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The company's management and Board of Directors are respansible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information inchuded in the anoual report, but does not include the sandalone
IND AS financial statements and ous Audiror's Report thereon. The annual report is expected o be made
available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the standalone IND AS Fnancial statements doesi’t cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurnce conclusion thereon.

Ins connection with our audit of the standalone IND AS Rnancial statements, out responsibility is to read the
other tnformation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is mateially inconsistent with the
ctandalone TN AS financial statements or our knowledge cbrained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
matenially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there {s 2 matedal misstatement theretn, we are required
to communicate the tatter to those charped with govemance and ke necessary netons, 2 nppﬁcablr under
the relevant laws and repulanons.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalonc Ind AS Financial Statements:

The Company’s mansgement and Board of Directars are responsible for the: maters stated in section
134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation ol these standalone Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and far  view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, (changes in equity) and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian accounting Standards
specificd under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Acconntng Standards) Rules, 2015,
a5 amended, This responsibility wlso includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
deteeting frauds and other irregulantes: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estmates that sre cessonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensunng the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, televant to the preparation and presentation of the
fnancisl stitement that pives true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whethes
due m Fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone nd AS fnancial statements, management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ahility to continue s a poing concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis ol wccounnng unless munagement
cither intends to liguidate the Company o (0 cease its operations, of has no realistic alternative but ta do so.

Those Board of Directors are also respopsilele Jor aversceing the Company’s financial reporting process.

DDAS & KAMALUDDIN
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements:

Our objectives are to obiain reasanable assurznce abowt whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are {ree from material misstutement, whether due to fraud or error, snd to ssue an
auditor's repoct that includes our apinitn, Reasonable assurance is 2 high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an andit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 1 material misstatement
when it cxists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decsions of users mben on
the bamis of these standalone Ind AS financial smitements,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

Ag¢ required by the Companies (Auditor’s Repoart) Order, 2020 (Mthe Oirder™), issued by the Central
Government of India in teems of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the Annexure A statement on the matters specified in paragmphs 3 and 4 of the Order, o the extent
applicahle.

As required by Comptroller and Aaditor General of India through directions/sub directions issued under
section 143(3) of the companies Act, 2013, on the basis of written representation teceived from
management, we give our report on the matter gpecified in the Annexure B attached.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(1) We have sought and obrained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were neeessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so [ur as it appears from our evamination of thase books

(c) The Balance Sheer, the Sttement of Profit and Loss including the staremeot of other
comprechensive Income the Statement of Cash Flow and statement of changes in  equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opmnion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial sttements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Tndian Accounting Stapidards )
Rules, 2013, s amended ;

(¢) Pursuant to the Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5% June 2015 issucd by Mmistry of Corporate
Affairs, Government of India, provisions of Section 164 (2) of the Act are not applieable to the
Company, being a Govemment Company.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference o this stundilone Tnd
AS financial scatement and the operting effectiveness of such controls, reler to our sepante
Report in “Annexure C" to this report,

() As per notification number G.SR. 463 (E) dated 5 June, 2015 isgued by Ministy of Corporate
Alfairs, section 197 of the Act regarding remuneration to director 1s not applicable to the company, since
it 2 a Government Company: and

(k) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Compantes (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinton and 1o
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending lifigation on its financial position in
its Standalone financial strement- Refer Note 26(A) to the Stndalone financial sttement.

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
smndards, for material foreseeable losses, if any and to the extent ascerfatnable, on lotg-
[EF COTHTRELS.

HUAS & RAMALUDIMN
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i, There has been no delay in transfleering amounts, regquired to be transferred, to the Investar
Education and Protection Fund by the Compary.

iv, (i} The management has tepresented that, to the besr of its knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaved or invested (either from
boreowed funds or share premium ot any other sources or kind of funds) by the company ©
or in any other persun(s) or entitv(ies), including foreipn entities ("Intermeduries"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writng or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
diceetly ar indirectly lend or invest in other persons or cntities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ulumate Beneficlasies") or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficianies;

(i) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and helief, other thaa
s diselosed in the notes to the acenuns, no funds have been received by the company from
any personfs) v entitplies), including forcign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the
understanding whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
direetly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persans ar entitics identfied in any manner
whatsaever by or on behaif of the Funding Party ("Ultmate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like ort behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, and

(iif) Based on such apdit procedures that we lave considered reasonable and approprate n
the circumsmnces; nothing has come 1o our notice that has qused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) contain any material misstatement.

v, (a)The final dividend paid by the company during the year in respect of the same declared for
the previous year is in tecordance with Section 123 of the companies Act 2013 is applicable.

(b) The campany has not declared interim dividend during the financial year.

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014 for maintaining backs of
account using secouniting softwnre which has a feature of recording andit mail {edit log)
facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023 , however the company
has not implemented/maintmed audit trail under Rule 11(g) of Companies {Audit and
Auditors) Ruoles, 2014 for the Financial Year 2023-2024.

Fur DDAS & KAMALUDDIN
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No, 324916E

e A L— ' d
(5K KAMALUDDIN})
Partner

Membership No. 058107
UDIN: 24058107B|2ZXE7649

Place ; Agartala
Date: 10.05.2024
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APPENDIX TO THE INDEPENDENT AUD ITOR'S REPORT

As part of an aucht 10 accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepnetsm throughout the audit. W alsoc

Identify and assess the risks of material missmiement of the stndalone Ind AS financial smrements, whether
due to fraud or eror, design and perform audit procedures responsive o those dsks, and obtin audit
evidence that i¢ sufficient and appropiate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a

mterial misstatemnent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invalve
collusion, forgery, intentional prnldgiong, misrepresentations, o the overtide of nternal control,

Oibtain an understanding of internal contrel relevant the audit in order to desgn avdit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)() of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion oo whether the company has adequate internal financial contrals
system in plice iand the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the approprinsteness of accounting policies used and the reasonsblencss of accounting estimates and
related diselosures made by matugemient

Conclude on the appropristeness of management’s use of the gning concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtuned, whethér a material uncerminty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Comphny’s ability to continue 15 a ZOIg CoNCEr. 1f we canclude that a matetial
uncertainty cxists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s repart to the related disclosures in the
fnancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequare, to modify ous opinion, Our conclusions are based
on the uudit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to ceise to continue s & going concer,

Fvaluate the owerall prcs-:nmﬁum siructure and content of the ctandalone Ind-AS financin] siatements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind-AS [itrancial statements pepresent the underlying
wransactions and events in a manner that achicves fair presentation.

We commuricate with those charged with governanice regarding, among ather matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any syificant deficiencies in the internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We alsn provide those charged with governance with o statement that we have complied with eelevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicale with them all relationships and ather matters that
may reasonably he thought 1o bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govermance, we determine thode matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the standalone Ind-AS financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matiers in our suditors report unless law or regulation
peecludes public disclosure about the matter of when, in cxtremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter <hould not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected 1o ourweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Far DDAS & KAMALUDDIN
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 324916E

.JJ,; - '}’ * —

(SK KAMALUDDIN)

Partner

Membership No. 058107
UDIN: 24058107 BJZZXET7649

Place : Agartala
Date: 10.05.2024
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TRIPURA NATURAL GAS COMPANY LIMITED
(CIN: U23201TR19908GC003451)

ANNEXURE- A to the INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT - 3157 MARCH, 2024

In the annexure referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on
the standalone Ind AS financial Statements for the year ended 31= March, 2024, we report that:

I Inrespect ofits property, plant & equipment:

a. (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;
(B) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, company has not any Intangible
Assets in the books of accounts.

b. The property, plant & equipmenl Were physically verified by the Management in
accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, and
information provides for physical verification of all the property, plant & equipment
4t reasonable intervals, According to the information and explanations given to us by
the management, discrepancies observed were not material but discrepancies have
not been properly accounted for into the books as the management could not be
ascertained the carrying value of the asset notin use asat the balance sheet date.

¢, According to information and explanations given to us, we report that, the title deeds
of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease arrangements are duly executed in favour of lessee), disclosed in
vhe financial statements are in held in the name of Company. The details of
exceptions are given as under:

Particulars [ Whether
line in the Title Deeds | held by | Property
gl. | Balanes Dascription of | Carrying held in the | the held
No. | Sheet Item of Property Value name of Promoter | sincedate | Reason
TIDCL has asked
for payment of
Tripura sidga00s | Sed Ak W
ROU premises No. 23 of e fries o :}: mﬁf:t e
b assets AD Nagar 41.08:810,00 | Bevelopment | Yes 22.08.2009 | ) sement. TNGCL
Corporation (annexure b od
of India land) asAcE g
and s paying
only Rent for the
| Leasehald Land.

d. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the hasis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its
property, plant and gquipment (including right of use assets) or intangible assets or
both during the year. The provisions of clause 3(1)(d) of the Order are nat applicable,

e, According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition
of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

ODAS & KAMALUDDIN
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1L, In respect of its inventory:

2. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has maintained proper records of its inventories and the Management has
conducted the physical verification of inventory (excluding stores & spares and
inventory lying with the third parties) at reasonable intervals during the year. We
have been explained that the stock of gas at the end of the year has been derived
based an volume of pipeline, Cascades, BDV etc. wirt corresponding pressure &
Temperature of gas.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies
of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of Inventory between physical
inventory and book records noticed on such physical verification.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and en the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in ageregate, from banks or
financial institutions on the basis of the security of current assets at any point of time
during the year. Hence, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

1. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, during the year the Company has not made any
investments, not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loan or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, LLP or any other parties.

(a) [A] Based on the audit procedures carried out by us and as per the information and
explanations given to us, the clause 111 (a) (A) is not applicable to the company.

[B] Based on the audit procedures carried out by us and as per the information and
explanations giver to us, the clause [11 (a) {(B) is not applicable to the company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, the Company has not made any investments, not provided any guarantes or
security or granted any loan or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, LLP or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirements to report on clause
3{iii}(b] to 3{1i)(f) of the order is not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon,

IV, The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security to the
parties covered under Section 185 of the Act. The Company has not granted provided any
guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 186 of the Act. The Company
has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of unsecured loans
granted during the financial year.

V. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposit or deemed deposit during the year hence, the question of compliance of section
73 and 76 of the Companies Act 2013 does not arise.

vi. We have not in the position to review the accounts and records maintained by the Company
pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records
under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act read with Companies (Cost Records & Audit)
Rules, 2014, as amended, as the maintenance of cost records are still in process and not
produced before us.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
accounts in respects of uncdisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax,

DDAS & KAMALUDDIN
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Provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of
Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues to the
appropriate authorities have been regularly deposited during the year by the company
except to nstances detalls of which are mentioned below:

Particulars Amount (Rs) Dues | Assessment
miore than 6 Month Year

Interest on TDS | 4,775.50 2010-11 &

[u/s 220(2)] 2011-12

b) Accaording to records of the Company and information and explanation given to us
the Company, the gross statutory dues of income tax or sale tax or service tax or duty
of custom or duty of excise or vaiue added tax or cess or Goods and Service Tax and
any other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of dispute or
deposited under protest and the forum where the dispute is pending are given helow.

rSI Name | Nature | Period  to | Forum Gross Amouni Amouni
No. | of of  the | which the  where dispute | deposited not
Statute | dues amount the amount | under deposited
relates dispute (Rs. in | protest/appeal | (Rs. in
is Lakhs) | (Rs. in Lakhs) | Lakhs)
_ ol . pending
1 | Central | Exeise | 26.07.2012 | CESTAT, | 386.94 | 29.02 357,92
Execise | Duty to Kolkata
Act, 25.07.2017
1944
2 Central | Excise | 27.07.2017 | CESTAT, | 51.73 5.17 46.56
Exeise | Duty to Kolkata
Act, 30.04.2018
1944 e -
3 Central | Excise | 01.05.2018 | CESTAT, | 19.71 1.48 18.23
Excise | Duty o Kolkata
Act, 31.10.2018
1644
There is no unrecorded transaction in books of accounts which have been

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under

the Income Tax Act, 1961,
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3{viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
company.

DDAS & KAMALUDLRIN
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IX.  (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared
a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government
authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
term loans were applied for the purposes far which the loans were obtained.

(d] According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis, have been used for
long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that the company
has not taken any funds ffom any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries and joint ventures,

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures
performed by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year
on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries and joint ventures.

X; (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during
the year,

Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(x)(a)&(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
company.

XL (a) Based on examination of the books and record of the company and according to
the information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of
materiality outlined, no fraud by the Company and no significant fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit

(b) According to information & explanation given to us no report under sub-Section
(12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act for detecting and reporting of Fraud has
been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 with the Central Government. '

(c) According to examination of books of accounts, documents, complaints,
clarification and explanations given to us, we have not come across any whistle-
blower complaints, received during the year by the Company

DUAS & KAMALUDDIN
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS




CONTIHNUATION SHEET

XIL.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company is not a Nidhi company. Hence, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable
to the company.

Xl According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examinations of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, The
details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (IND-AS) 24,
Related Party Disclosures specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

XV, (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examinations of the records of the Company, the company has implemented an
internal audit system in commensurate with the nature and size of the business.

(b] As the company has produced internal audit Report for the FY. 2023-2024
dated 29.04.2024 on 30th April, 2024, and such report is considered by us for the
period under audit.

V. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records, the Company has not entered into non-cash transaction
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, clause 3(xv) of the
Order is not applicable to the company.

XVL  a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve

Bank of India,'1934. Accordingly clauses 3(XV1){a) and 3(XV1)(b) of the order are
not applicable.
¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(XVI)(C) of the
order is not applicable.
d) According to the information and explanation given to us by the management and
as per our observation during the course of audit, we are in opinion that there is no
core Investment company within the group (as defined in the Core Investment
Companies(RB) Direction 2016.

XVIL  on the basis of our examination of books of accounts of the Company the Company
has not incurred cash losses in the Financial Year and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

XVIIL. Based on our examination of the records, resignation of previous statutory auditor
is not observed during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order relating to
reporting of resignation of statutory auditor is not applicable to the company.

XIX. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans, we opine that no material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
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date of balanice sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date.

XX.  {a) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures
performed by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year
on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries and joint ventures.

(b) Since there are no unspent amounts which are to be transferred pursuant to
section 135(5) and 135(6) of the Act, hence, provisions of clause 3(xx])(b) of the
order are not applicable.

XXl The consolidated financial statement is not required to be prepared by the company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xxi) of the Order relating to consolidated financial statements
(CFS) is not applicable.

For DDAS &WUDDH‘I
Chartered Accountants

1CAl Firm Registration No. 324916E
Place: Agartala

e = !-"' s
Date: 10.05.2024 = .
(SK KAMALUDDIN)
Partner

Membership No. 058107
UDIN: 24058107 B]ZZXE7649
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THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT - 3157 MARCH, 2024
ANNEXURE-B

Referred to in paragraph 2 to “Report on Other legal and regulatory requirements” of the
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Tripura Natural Gas Company
Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

restructuring of an existing loan
or cases of waiver/write off of
debts/loans/interest made by a
lender due to Company inability

' to repay the loan? If yes, the

financial impact may be stated?

procedures carried out and as per
the information and explanations
given to us by the Company, there
was no restructuring of existing
loans or cases of waiver/write off of
debts/ loans/interest made by a
lender to the Company due to the
Company’s inability to repay the
loan.

No ubd Action Taken Impact on
1 Whether the Company has system | The company maintains its books of | Nil
in place to process all the | account on IT system, Tally Prime,
accounting transitions through IT | which is an ERP system. All
system? If yes the implications of | accounting  transactions  are
processing of accounting | processed in accounts maintained
transaction outside IT system on | on Tally Prime.
the integrity of the accounts along
with the financial impilications, if | Based on the audit procedures
any, may be stated? carried out and as per the
information and explanations given
to us, no accounting transactions
have been processed or carried
outside the IT system of the
Company. Accordingly, in our
opinion,
there are no implications on the
integrity of the accounts.
2. Whether there is any | In accordance with the audit | Nil

[IAS & l'lAM.l'-Iml)JJ]N
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| 3. Whether funds received/ ] According to the information and | Nil
receivable for specific schemes | explanations given to us and as
from central state agencies were represented by the Management
properly accounted for/ utilized | and based on our examination of
4s per its terms and conditions? the books and records of the
List the cases of deviation. Company, the company has not
received any scheme from central
state agency and we did not
encounter any deviation

fur DDAS & KAMALUDDIN
. Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 324916E

Place: Agartala

I & L ) .
Date: 10.05.2024 = '

(SK KAMALUDDIN)

Partner

Membership No. 058107
UDIN: 24058107BJZZXE7649
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THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT - 3157 MARCH, 2024
ANNEXURE-C

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINALCIAL CONTORLS UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF
SECTION 143 OF THE ACT

We have audited the internal finncial control over fnancial repordng of TRIPURA NATURAL GAS
COMPANY LIMITED (CIN: U23201TR19908SGC003451) (“I'he Company”} as of 314 March, 2024 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTORLS:

The company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintiining internal financial controls
based on the wternal controls over financial reporting  ¢riteria established by the company considenng
the essential components of interpal controls swmted in the Guidance Note on Audi of internal
financial Contols over financial Reporting issued by the Insttute of Charrered Accountant of India
[“ICAT" |, These responsibiliies include the  design. implementation and maintenance of ndequate
internal financial contrals that were operiting effecuvely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business including adherence 1o Company’s policies, the safepuarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors! the accuracy wnd completeness of the accounung
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial nformation, as required under the companies
Act 2013 |"the Act™),

AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITY:

Our respansibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our sudit. We conducted over all audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of lntemal Financinl Gontrols Over Financial Reporting [the “Guidanee Note™] and the standards
on Auditing, ssued by TCAL and deemed to be prescribed under secion 143[10] of the Act 1o the
extent applicable 1o an audic of internal Financial Conteals, bath ssued by the TCAL those Standards
and the Guidance Nete require that we comply with ethicul requirements and plen and perform the
audit to obtain ressonable assurance aboat whether adequate intemal finaneial econtrols over financial
repocting was established and mainmined and if such controls operated effectively in all matesial
respects.

Out audit involves performing procedures o obtain audic evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls svstem over fnancial reporting and their operiting effectivencss, Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an  understanding of internal fnancil
controls over fmancial reporting: assessing the risk that a

materin] weakness exists, and testing and evalusting the design and operating cffectveness of mternal
conteals based on the asiessed dsk

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessmend of the nsks of
marctial misstarement of the fnancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe thar the
sudit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audir opmion
on the Company’s intermal financial controls system over financial reporting.

[AS & KAMALUDUDIN
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MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING:

A ecompany’s internal financial controls over financial reporting 18 a process designed o provide
reasonable assurance regarding the relishility of fnancil reporing and the preparaton of financil
statements for external purpose in  aceordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company'’s internal  fnancial controls  over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that :-

(1] permin 1o the maintenance of record that, 0 reasonable detml, accurately and fairly refllect the
tnsactions and dispostons of the company,

[2] provide ressonable assurance  that transacton are recorded #s necessary o permt prepasagoen of
financial starements in accordance with penerally accepred accounting principles; and that receips and
expendimures of the company are beng made only in accordance with authorisations of munagement
and directors of the company; and '

[3] provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthosised scquisition,
use, or disposiion of the company's assels that could have # material effect on the finsncial
statements,

INHERENT LIMITATIONS QF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING:

Beciuse of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
passibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material musstatements due o
error o fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation af the inoternal
financial contrals over fnancial reporting 1o fumre perinds are subject the risk that the intetnal
financial controls over financial reporting may become inadequate beeause of changes in conditons, or
tiat the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may dereniorate.

OPINION:

In our opinion, the company bas, lnall material respects; an adequate internal financul reporang aud
such internal financial controls over financial reporting weee operating cffecuvely as at 31 March
2024, based on the internal controls over fnancial reporting criterin established by the company
considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance MNote an Audit of
internal Financisl Controls Over financial reporting issued by ICAL

For D DAS & KAMALUDDIN
Chartered Accountants
[CAI Firm Registration No. 324916E

Place : Agartala
Date : 10.05.2024

1 B

S— ,..r-'-i—_—li-

(5K Kamaluddin)

Partner

Membership No. 058107
[UDIN: 24058107 B]ZZXE764%9
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Tripara Notural Gas Company Lisinitindd
CIN: UZ3201THISHEGOEI451
Balapce Sheet as ul 11 1 March 2024

T i Lakin)
Pariicilars Mo A al Axat
1wt March 2024 Just March, 2023
ARSETS
Nun Current Assets
Property, Flantand Equlpmeit 3 11,21351 At rp ALl
Capltal work: in-progress an el LATRTI
RO ASSET 3 L3NT0E AT L
inaniial Assets » E
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For DDAS & KAMALUDDIN & Reanp Adbiharasan
CIOAITERED ACTOUNTANTS {THrectr Cammerciall {Muiaging Direcior)
PR AGE L% =101 3ZHYT 0 DTSN
#K. Katdel s
Ihaimiar {‘;‘h Dg .&:
M. s - EABLY - -
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Tripura Natural Gas Company Limlted
CIN- U23201TR1990SGC003451

Smtement of Profil & Loss for the Perlod ended 31 st March 2024

T ln Lakh)
Particulars Mot
Asal Asan
Mo A1st Marech 2024 st March, 20023
1. Income
Revenue from Operations [Gross) 1 I8,222.04 26,359.15
Olier’ Income 13 1.024.00 84574
Tutal Income 29, 246.04 L7, 20433
Purchase of gas a0 13301940 1447530
Changs in inventories Z0A | 100 724
Exrige duty 1,927.18 LT20.93
Envpleyee benelits expenses 21 41242 3454
Finance Cost ii 11670 140,47
Dupreciation and Emortzation exponses 3 LH1145 1,9006.94
(her expensas 3 678314 583557
-
IV. Total Expenses 24.353.84 24,246.59
V. Profit before Tax (111 1V) L UTEET 2,958.34
VL Tax Expenses 24
= Current Year 1LA57.54 110459
= Earlior Years 31440 3543
Dreforred Tax -71.89 -206.86
Tuotal Tux Expienses [T LEERT
Vil Prafit for the Perind [V-V1) 4,091.04/ ZAOZ5IT
Other Comprehensive income
VIEL Mems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in
subiequoiit perleds
Rermeasurement galn/ (losses) of defined benefit obllgations 1392 1213
Imconie tax ¢Tect relating o thess ioms -3,50 311
10.42 .02
I%, Net ather comprehensive loss not to be reclassified w profit or 1042 942
losx in subxeguent periods
Tuital mmprnhrnshrq Income [Vil+ TX]} 410146 2,034,149
Eirulng Per Eguity Shire (Faice Value £100-cach)
- fasie 136,37 G67.51
- [Hbubed 136,37 &7.51
Significant Aceounting Policies Note N, 2
The Moten referred gbove Torm an integral part of the soomats. !
i s Bt ol wves dsiy : //
For T DAS & KAMALUIMIIN 54 Reung A Ankirnsan
CIARTERED ACCTUNTANTS (Director Comuereial) (Mannging Direetur}
I TIGE [ - 10132897 DIN 09236359

Sk kemahabla
Tanvar
Kb Mg - 03107

Maze | Aymnisls
Date 16052034
UDHN: Z405F107B|ZERE 7649

B Dl

Pradeep Kr. Mahato
(Company Secretary)
Membership Ne-ALS3132)

Subrata Debnath
(C bl Finnnein] Ciicer)
Mesnbership No-M/A2854



Triira Matuiral fas Compay Limlted
CIM= 2320 TI199056C003451

Statement ol Changes In Rguity for the s ealed 31 March 2009

(&} Eepuliy Shive Capltal i Lawh
[Cterwisn St
HL.Ko Shetres held by Promobers at the end of the year % Change
WolToml | During the
Promotels Nathe hw. ul Shares Sharas Your Amoumis In INR
Equity shuardy of B 100 each fsved, s ulkcribed and fully
paded
a1 [Gall [ndia Limitad 14,059,388 48,98 - 1,469
1] rigr Fndusitt sl Bevelopment Corporation Limited 765306 25,51 - 765
03 |Ansem (as Company Limited 7,645,308 _25.51% - TEE
Asitt 31 Murch 2023 30,00,000 | 100.00% 0.00% 3,000
01 JGail Indéa Limitod 14 49,380 485 - 1469
B2 |Tripira Industrial Dheveiapiment Corporation Limitsd T 65, 30 25.01% " 765
03 Jhssam Gos Company Limited T ASA0E 25514 - 65
tasise uf share caploal . .
s nr3Y March 2024 A0,00,000 100.50% 0% 3,000
[B) Otlsr eyquity
For the prciod ended 31 March 2024:
= ¥ in Lakfy)
Heserve & Surplus
Hebilned Earnin TOTAL
s ag 31 March 2023 14.534.7] | 1493471
Frofit for the year 203617 202527
Ro-mossuremnet jrain/(Toss) on deflned benelit plang {net of .02 502
Idend Paid for FY-2020-31 (258,01 {25601
[As £ 31 March 2023 16,710.68
P‘I'dl'lr:l'n-rﬂur'u'l;.-ir i (P Y [l 4046104
Remeseiverne it gain f{loss) on delined benaflt plans [net of 14z 1042
Dividend for FY-2023:23 i [202.58) {Z02.52)
AR &3 March 2024 I0,600.84
An o v pespant of een Qe 5C Hemmg Adinbarasan
For DOAS S KAMALLUDDIN {Direetor Commereinl) {Munnging Direcior)
CHANTTRED A0 COUNTANTS EHMN -1 32857 LN 4235159
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—— _'_‘__,,f M’&f

FPammex =

M. M- (HA0T Pradoep Kr, Mahato Subrata Debnath
(Company Secrewary) {Lhief Finaneial Offiver)

Plaeee ;A gnrealy Memherslip Mo-ACS31321 Membership No-M32854

Dane: 10.05.2024
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Tripurs Natweal Gis Company Limited
CIN- U23201TRI9905GC009451
Siatemeut ol Cush Flows fur e yoar ended 31 Macch 2004

(& Lakii)
Fag it wesrr pniled Fer he vear emdeyd
Hitatin 1 Marrl 3024 31 Murch 2023
Candi Mow frum sperating wobivitie
1rmmmﬂ mE 448220 195R 0
Adljustment 1a recuneile profld before tax to set ol Niwst-
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TRIPURA NATURAL GAS COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: UZ3Z01TRI990SGC003451
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Corporate information

Tripura Natural Gas Company Limited (the Company] is a domiciled India with registered office, in
Agartala, Tripura

GAIL (India) Ltd entered in to a contractual agreement with Tripura Industrial development
corporation, Assam gas co Ltd on February 15, 2005 as a major shareholder to make Tripura Natural
Gas Co Ltd the fastest growing CGD entity in entire Eastern India for distribution and marketing of
natural gas and compressed natural gas (CNG) for use in residential, commercial, industrial and
automative sector, in state of Tripura, TNCGCL has established tself as a pioneer in customers in the
state of Tripura.

The Company is primarily engaged In Gas distribution through pipe lines.

Significant accounting policies

Basis ol preparation

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, .

These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 have been prepared in accordance with
Ind AS,

The standalone financial statements have been prepared as a going concern on accrual basis of
accounting. The company has adopted historical cost basls for assets & liabilities, except for certain
items which hove been measured on a different basis and such basis is disclosed in the relevant
accounting palicy.

The standalone financial statements are presented in INR [Indian Rupees) and all values are rounded
to the nearest Lakh (up to Two decimal), except when otherwise indicated.

2.2 Accounting Policies

* Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE)
a) The Cost of an item of PPE is recognised as an asset, if and only if

L. ltis probable that the future economic benefits flow to the entity and
Il.  The cost of an item can be measured reliably

(4] Property plant & Equipment are stated at original cost net of tax / duty credit availed,
less accumulated depreciation. All costs relating to scquisition of fixed assets till
commissioning of such assets are capitalized. In the case of commissioned assets
where final payment to the Contractors |5 pending, capltalization is made on
provisional basis, including provisional lability pending approval of Competent
Autharity, subject to necessary adjusument in cost and déprediation in the year of
settlement.

The management has physically verified the Property, plant & Equipment at the end
of the financial year and identified the obsolete assets during the verification. But
valuation of such obsolete assets was not done yvet and the company is in process of
valuation of such assets.

c) Stores & Spares which meet the definition of PPE [whelhar as component or




TRIPURA NATURAL GAS COMPANY LIMITED
CIN; U23201TR19905GC003451
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024

d]

underlying asset. Expenditure on major inspection and oveérhauls of PPE is
copitalized, when it meets the asset recognition criteria. Any remaining carrying
amount of the cost of the previsus inspection and overhaul Is derecognized. The cost
of replacing major part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in
the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized regardless of
whether the replaced part has been depreciated separately. If it is not practicable to
determine the carrying amount of the replaced part, the Company uses the cost of the
replacement as an indication of what the cost of replaced part was at the time it was
acguirad or constructed.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value
of all ofits intangible assets recognized as at 01.04.2015 measured as per previous
GAAP and use that carrying value as deemed cost of the intangible assets.

¢) When significant parts of property, plant and equipment (identified individually as
component) are required 1o be replaced at intervals, the Company derecognizes the replaced
part, and recognizes the new part with s own associsted wseful life and it is depreciated
necordingly, Likewise, when n major inspection/overhaulfrepair is performed, its cost is
recognized in the carrving omount of respective assets us a replacement if the recognition
eriteria are satisfied. Overhauling / repairs and maintenance/ inspection are processes of
maintenance performed on a machine or other industrial equipment after certain period of usage.
The purpose of overhauling is to keep the machine/eguipment in working condition, As per Para
13, 14 of Ind AS |6 and guidance issued by the ICAL an entity should recognise in the carrying
amount of an item of PPE the cost of replacing part of such an item (each major inspection
fonerhaul ) when that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria is met, 1t is pertinent to note thal
Ind AS 16 does not distinguish between the expendilure thal mainlains the existing service
potential of an asset and expenditure that enhances the service potential of the asset.
Accordingly, both the above qualify 1o be capitalised with PPE.

All othar repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation has been provided on straight line method.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold improvements, have been
provided en pro-rata basis, on the straight line method, using rates determined based on
management's technical assessment of useful econpmic lives of the asset,

Followings are the estimated useful lives of various category ofassets used,

Category of assets Useful life as adopted by | Useful life as per Schedule Il
management :
Plant & Machinery-Project PNG 30 years 30 years
Plant & Machinery-Project PNG 15 years 15 vears
Office Equipment 5 years S years
Furnmiture & fixture 10 years 10 years
Vehicle 10 years 8 years
Computer (except tablets*®) 6 years 3 years
Office Building 60 Years 60 Years
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*Tablets are depreciated at an estimated useful life of 3 years.

Leasehold improvements are amortised aver economic useful life or unexpired period of lease
whichever is less. Assets costing ¥ 5,000 or less are depreciated entirely in the year of purchase.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate,
depreciates certain items of plant and machinery, vehicies, computers and bullding over estimated
useful lives which are different from useful life prescribed in Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013,
The management belleves that these estimated useful lives are realistic and rellect fair
approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Anitem of property, plant and equipment and any significant partinitially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference hetween the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) s included in the statement of profit orloss when the
asset is derecognised,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year énd and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,
* Intangible Assets
a) Intangible assets like Right of Use (ROU], which are expected to provide future

enduring economic benefits are capitalized as Intangible Assets and are stated at
their cost of acquisition less accumulated amortization and any accumulated

impairment loss,

h) Expenditure incurred which are eligible for capitalizations under intangible assets
are carried as intangible assets under development till they are ready for their
intended use.

£) On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value

of all of its intangible assets recognized as at 01.04.2015 measured as per previous
GAAP and use that carrying value as deemed cost of the intangible assets,

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual
project is recognized as an intangible asset when the company can demonstrate all the following:

* The technical feasibility of completing the intangihle asset so that it-will be available for UsE or
sale. Its intention to complete the asset.

* Its ability to use or sell the asset. How the asset will generate future economic benefits
* The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset

e The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during
development.

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is
applied requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, Amortization of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is
available for use. [L is amortized on a straight line basis over the period of expected future benefit
from the related project. Amortization is recognized In the statement of profit and loss. During the
period of development, the assel is tested for impairment annually.
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» Capital Work-in-progress
) The capital work in progreéss includes Construction Stores Including Material in
Transit/ Equipment / Services, ete. received at site for use in the projects.

b All revenue expenses incurred during Construction Period, which are exclusively
attributable to acquisition/ construction of the asset, are capitalized at the time of
commissioning of such assets.

2.3 Foreign currencies
Functional and presentational currency
The Company's financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional
currency. Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which an
entity operates and is normally the currency in which the entity primarily generates and expends
cash.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in [oreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency
spof rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spol rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss.

The Company has not ente red intoany foretgn currency transaction during the year,

2.4 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset, All other borrowing costs are expensed n the period in which they
aceur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

a) Interest expense calculated using the effective interest method as described in Ind AS
109- ‘Financial Instruments’

b) interest expense on lease liabilities recognized in accordance with Ind AS 116~ "Leases’
and

2.5 Government Grant

Government Grants are nol recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will
comply with conditions attached to them and the grants will be received, In case of depreciable
assets, the cost of the assets is shown at gross value and grant thereon is taken to deferred income
which is recognized as incame in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the useful life of the asset.
Government Grants related to nen-depreciable assets may also require the fulfilment of certain
obligations and would then be recognised [n profit or loss over the periods that bear the cost of
meeting the obligations, During the year the company has not received any governmant grant.

=y

2.6 Non-Current Assets held for Sale
Non-current assets or disposable groups clagsified as held for sale are measured at the lower of
41 %.. and liahilities classified as held for sale are
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presented separately in the balance sheet, PPE and intangible assets once tlassified as held for sale
are not depreciable or amortised.

During the Financial year the management has identified the disposable assets but the company has
no policy to declared the assets as scra ped, further, the company has entered a contract with
vendor far valuation.

27 Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classificadon.
An asset is classified as current when: .
e Itis expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
e itisheld primarily for the purpose of tra ding
o Itls expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

» Itisexpected to be settled in normal operating cycle

« Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

o Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assetsand liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition af assets for processing and their realisation
in cash and cash equivalents, The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

2.8 Fair value measurement
The Company measures no financial instruments and equity settled employee share based payment
plan at fair value at each reporting date.

Fairvalue s the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfera liability Inan orderly
rransaction hetween market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

» inthe principal market for the asset or liahility, or

« inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use-when pricing the asset or llability, assuming that market participants actin their economic
best interest.

A Gir value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into accou nt a market participant's ability to
generate economic beneflts by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficlent data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unohservable inputs.

Al assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that

is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

s Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or lighilities

s Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable _

s Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a ‘recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
meusurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assels, unquoted financial assets, and
slgnificant liabilitles, such as valuation of unquoted investments and equity settled emplayee share
bhased payment plan. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the Company’s
management, Selection eriteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the Company's management analyses the movements in the values of assets
and liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting
policies. For this analysis, the Company’s management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest
valuation by agreeing the Information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant
documenis.

The Campany’s management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the
change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determineg
whether the ¢change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above.

2.9 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment Is received,
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
government. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements
since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements, has pricing latitude, and i also
exposed to credit risks.

Goods and services Tax (GST) Is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax
collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it
is excluded from revenue.

Revenue from operations has been considered by deducting the amount of sales return from the
e revenue is to be measured at falr value, gross
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number of sales to be adjusted towards provisions for sales return with corresponding decrease in
Trade recelvables. No such provision for sales return has been made in the books for the period.

The specific recognition criteria deseribed below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sate of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods have passed to the buyer and the cantractual obligation is over on the part of the seller to
<ell the hooks. As per IND AS 115 (Revenue for Contracts). Revenue from the sale of goods is
measured at the fair value of the consideration recelved or receivable, net of sales returns, turnover
discounts and cash discounts,

Revenue is recognized to deplet the transier of control of promised goods or services to customers
upon the satisfaction of performance ghligation under the contract in an amount that reflects the
considerstion to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Consideration includes contributions by customers towards assets over which Company has control.
Where performance obligation js satisfied over time, company recognizes revenue using input/
output method based on performance completion till reporting date. Where performance obligation
i5 satisfled at a point in time, company recognizes revenue when customer obtains control of
promised goods and services in the contract.

Claimis (including interest on delayed realization from customers) are accounted for, when there is
significant certainty that the claims are realizahle.

Liability in respect of Minimum Cuaranteed Dfftake (MGO) of Natural gas Is not provided for where
the same is secured by MGO recoverable from customers. Payments/receipts during the year on
account of MGO are adjusted on receipt basis.

Minlmum charges relating to transportation of LPG are accounted for on receipt hasis.

In terms of the Gas Sales Agreement with the customers, amount received towards Annual Take or
Pay Quantity (ATOPQ) of Gas s accounted for on the basis of realization and shown as Hability till
malke up Gas is delivered to customer as per the contract.

The company has issued involces on assumption basis at the end of the March for consumer, of which
meter reading is not done/wrong meter reading was done. Then the consumer has option to change
the bill up to 15% of May. The amount of revenue for thuse consumers is uncertain and as per
comparison with previous year the involve is non-material for the organisation.

Sale of services
Service Income is recognized on accrual basts as and when services are provided and invoices raised

during the vear.

Interest income

Interost income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into aceount the amount outstanding
and the rate applicable. For all fina neial instruments measured at amortised cost and other interest-
bearing financial assets, interest Income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). The EIR is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash veceipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asser. When caleulating the effectiveinterest rate, the Company estimates the expe cted cash
flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
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extenslon, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income
Is included in other income in the statement of profit or loss.

2.10 Income taxes
Current income tax
Current Income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or less Is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction elther in OCI or directly in equity. Management peri odically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the tability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and lishilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax labilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

» When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

o In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and [nterests in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foresesable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised, except:

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or lability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

» In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests In joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferved tax assets Is reviewed al each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it s no langer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the defarred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reparting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and labilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax Jaws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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2.1

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income ar directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are affset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

Borrowing costs :

Barrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily lakes a substantial period of time to get ready for its Intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Barrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of [unds.

Leases: .

Identifying a lease

At the inception of the contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The company assesses whether:
i. The contract involves the use of an identified asset, specified explicitly or implicitly.

i, The Company has the rilght th obtain substantially all the economic bénefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use, and

{il. The Company has right to direct the use of the asset. Company recognizes lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlyingassets

Initial recognition of Right of use asset (ROU}

The Company recognizes a ROU asset at the lease commencement date (i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for use), ROU assets are initially measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost ol right-of-
use assets includes the amount of lease liabllities recognized, adjusted for any lease payments made
an or before the commencement date, plus any Initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or site on which itis
located, less any lease Incentlves received,

Subsequent measurement of Right of use asset (ROU)

ROU assets are subsequently amortized using the straight line method from the commencement date
to the earlier of the end of the useful life of ROU asset or the end of the lease term. If ownership of the
leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the

exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
In addition, the right of use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted
for certain re-measurement of the lease liability. Refer to the accounting policies in section 1.12
Impairment of non-financial assets.

Initial recognition of lease liability
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2.13

Lease labilities are Initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be paid over the
lease term. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liabilities comprise of the
following:

i, Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments
Ii. Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate
iii, Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

iv. The exercise price under a purchase aption, extension option and penalties for early termination
only if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise those options.

Subsequent measurement of lease lability

Lease liahilities are subsequently increased Lo reflect the aceretion of Interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if thereis a
modification, a change In the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g, changes to future
payments resulting from a change In an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a
change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (Le, those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense in Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Ind As 116 "Leases" was notified on 30.03.2019 by MCA and made effective from 01.04.2019. Ind AS
116 introduces a single accounting model for accounting of all lease agreements and requires a lessee
to recognise a right of use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease
liabflity representing its obligation to make lease payment

The company has elected Cumulative cateh-up method for transition te the new accounting standard.
The Cumulative catch-up method requires lessee to discount its future lease payments by its
incremental borrowing rate, The company has used 9.05%, 7.20% & 8.05% p.a as discounting rate.

inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value,

Costs incurred in bringing each product to (ts present location and condition is accounted for as

follows:
« Raw materials and finished goods are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower

under FIFO method. Finished goods include excise duty and royalty wherever applicable.

« Stock in process is valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower under FIFO method,
It is valued at cost wheére the finished goods in which these are to be incorporated are expected to
e sold at or above the cost.

+ Stores and spares and other material for use in production of inventories are valued at weighted
average cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. It is valued at weighted average cost
where the finished poods in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at/or above
cost.
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2.14

« The stock of Gas in plpelines and in tanks in CNG/PNG station is not held for the purpose of
producing or providing goods and services. The stock gas in pipe lines and tanks is held in the
process of production, and the stock of finished products in pipelines and the stock in tanks of
finished products is meant for sale in ordinary course of business. Accordingly, the stock of Gas in
pipelinesand tanks is treated as Inventory

Net realizable value is determined based on estimated selling price, less further costs expected w be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an Indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset's recoverahle amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s {CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
Recoverable amount Is determined for an Individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows thatare largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the- carrying
amount of an asset or COU exceads its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value In use, the estimated future cash fows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current marker assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are tken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which
are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the ind iwidual assets are allocated.
These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a perind of five years. For longer periods, a
lang-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To
estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the
Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for
subsequent years, unless an increasing rate ¢an be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country ar countries in
which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment lasses of continuing operations, including impairment on {nventories, are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment 1s made at each reporting date to determine whether
there s an indication that previously recognised Impairment losses no longer exist or have
decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount.
A previously recognised impalrment loss is reversed only if there has heen a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal s limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had nio impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried ata revalued amount, in which
case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
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Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired.

impairment Is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU [or group
of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates, When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its
carrying amount, an impairment loss [€ recognised. Impairment losses relating o goodwili cannot be
reversed in future periods.

No such impairment of non-financial assets were made in this period.

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of pne entity and a financtal
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Inittal recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the Anancial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
+ Financial assets at amartised cost

« Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost

A'debt instrument’ Is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

s The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

« Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate (ETR] method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acguisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognised |n the profit or loss.

Debt instrument at FVTOCT

A daht instruments is classified as at the FVTOCH if both of the following criteria are met:

e The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets, and

« The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income
[0C1), However, the Company recognizes interest income, impal rment losses & reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On de-recegnition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt
instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.
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Equity instruments at FVYTOLI

All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which
are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in @ business
combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments,
the group may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value in other
comprehensive income, The group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and Is irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on
the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts
from OC] to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the PEL.

Financiol assets at FVYTPL
FVTPLis a residual category for figancial assets. Any financial assets, which does not meet the criteria
for categorization as at amartized cost or as FYTOC, Is classified as at FYTPL,

In addition, the Company may elect to classify a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized
cost or FVTOCI eriteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or
eliminates a measurement or recogrition inconsistency (referred to as "accounting mismatch’).
Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized (n the P&L.

De-recognition )

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

assets) Is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s standalone balance sheet) when:

« The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

+ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
ohligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a]) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. '

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ewnership, When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
af the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recopnise the ransferred
asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the company also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continulng involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Comipany could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

in accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss {ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
EXpOSUTE:

e Financial assets that are measured atamortised cost eg. trade receivables and bank balance
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The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables,

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant incréase in the credit risk since [nitial
recognition. If credit risk has not Increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used o provide for
Impairment loss, However, I credit risk has increased significantly, lfetime: ECL 15 used. If, in' a
subsequent period, cradit quality of the Instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since indtial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairmentloss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL impairment loss allowance [or reversal] recognized during the period is recognized as
income/expense in the statement gf profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head
‘other expenses’ in the P&L.

Financial llabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at Initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or logs, loans and borrowings, payvables, or as derlvatives designated as hedging instruments
In an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All fimancial liahilities are 'rev:ugni.sed initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financtal labilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fir value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liahilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near tern. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon inilial recognition at falr value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied.
For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk
are recognized in OCL These gains/loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity, All ather changes In falr value of
stich liability are recognised in the statement of profit ar loss.

Be-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replnced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of aa-gxiztiag liability are substantially modified, such an
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exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss

Re-classification of Financial Assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liahilities on initial recognition. After
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there Is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are
expected to be infrequent. The Company's senlor management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations.
Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the
Company either beging or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the
Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which s the first day of the Immediately next reporting period following the
change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest,

Difsetting of Financial Instruments

Financlal assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the standalone
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
Is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the Habilities simultaneously.

Retirement benefits:

The Company’s cantribution to the Provident Fund is remitted to a separate trust established for this
purpose based on a fixed percentage of the eligible employee's salary and debited to Statement of
Profit and Loss / CWIP. Further, the company makes provision as per actuarial valuation towards
any shortfall in fund assets to meel statutory rate of interest in the future period, to be compensated
by the company tu the Provident fund trost

Employee Benefits under Delined Benefit Plans in respect of gratuity are recognized based on the
present value of defined benefit obligation, which is computed on the basis of actuarial valuation,
Actuarial asset in excess of respective liability s recognized during the year

Re-measurement including actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debir or credit to retained earnings through Statement of Profit and Loss or Other
Comprehensive Income: in the year of occurrence, as the case may be. Remeasurements are not
rectassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods.

The Company also operates a defined contribution scheme for Pension benefits for its employees
and the contribution is remitted to a separate Trust

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets & Capital Commitments
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the abligation and a reliable estimate ean be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Company expects sume uvr all of a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognisad as a separate assel, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain, The expense relating to a provision s presented In the statement of profit or loss net of any
relmbursemeant.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used. the
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Contingent liabilities are passible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrénce or non-oecurrence of one or more future events not wholly
within the control of the Company. Where It is not probable that an cutflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
lizhility, uniess the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilites are
disclosed on the basis of judgment of the management/independent experts. These are reviewed at
each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current manasgement estimate,

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is
a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of
resources. Contingent liabilities/ assets excesding Rs. 5 Lacs In each case-are disclosed by way of
notes to accounts except when there is remote possibility of settlement frealization.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance
date.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in thebalance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value.

For the purpose statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank and in
hand and short terin investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders of the corhpany by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year.

Diluted EPS artounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders
ol the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus
the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive
potential equity shares into equity shares.

Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the Company

The Company recognises a liabtlity to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the
Company when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of
the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by
the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised divectly in equity.

Mon-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value
re-measurement recognised directly in equity,

Upon distribution of nan-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and
the carrying amount of the assets distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company is paid dividend to its shareholder at 10% of Net profit as per dividend declaration on
its 34 AGM.

Accounting Policies, Changes in accounting estimates and errors

The amendments clarifies the definition of a change in accounting estimates by replacing with a
definition of accounting estimates. Under thenew definition, accounting estimates are "monetary
amounts in financial statements thatare ",f.?;"?'-*m surement uncertainty”, Entities develop
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accounting estimates i accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a
way thal involves measurement uncertainty, The Company does not expect this amendment to have
any significant impact in its financial statements,

The preparation of the Company's standalone financial statements requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilides, accompanying disclosures, contingent liabilities/ assets at the date of the
standalone financial statements, Estimates and assumplions are continuously evaluated and are
based on management’s experience and other [actors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods. In particular, the Company has identified the areas where
significant judgements, estimates and assumptions are required. Further information on each of
these areas and how they impact the various accounting policies are described below and also in the
relevant notes to the fihanclal statements. Changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively.

= Judgement
In the process ofipplying the Company’s accounting policles, management has made the
judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
standalone financial statements:

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities and assets which may arise from the ordinary course of business in
relation to claims against the Company, including legal, contractor, land access and other
claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uneertain
future events occur or fail to occur, The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum,
of contingencies inherently invelve the exercise of significant judgments and the use of
estimates regarding the outcome of future events.

« Estimates and assumption
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Company determines its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
financial statements are prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market change or circumstances arising beyond
the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
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Note 3 - Property, plant and equigment

Compneents of Property, plant and equipment [Pacluding assets hold under Ananee leases) mee ax Fallawes:

i Lakiy)
Cost) Valuation Plant & Machinery Building- Office Farnllure & | Transport Electrical Frochold Land Tatal
Offce/her Equipments fixture Equipments Equignment
AL 1t April 2042 1359227 L337.58 11256 TL59 047 B.53 20533 16,329.33
Additians LOTF3T 71118 EERT] - - - - L7074
Acgulsitions of o subsidiary - - - -
Dizposaly =
Exchmnge dillorences - -
Othier (L) [0.79)
1 371 sk March 2023 15,618.85 104878 14476 T2.5% A7) [ Akl 0533 19,009,729
Addittons o402 L3406 17.73 (kS " 117 = GRZ, 71
Aciishiithons of 8 subsadbary - -| -
Disparsals n
| Exchanye dillecences -
Hbzer - - . - - n i
AL 31 st March 2024 A6.259.14 107222 16249 765 047 970 20533 19, 782.00
T i Lakin)
Deprecintion and Imipairment | Plant & Machinery Building CHfice Firrnitare & [ Transport Thectrical Freetold Land Total
Offlee fOther Equipments figture Equipmants Equipmient
At 1se April 2023 547,36 52515 7503 4763 0,47 639 5, 702,03
Duprecistion expeie 1,247 46 13942 AnsT 30 . D44 142429
Impalrment - - - - - .
[Fapazal [0.16] 2 [0.16)
Exchange differences - - - -
Othiir {02} o . - - - {002}
A1 31 st March 2023 6, 294.00 664,57 105.55 534931 47 683 - 712615
Depreciatinn e 12625 147,310 27.19 40| - [ - 148234
Impuirment -] . - | s
Dixpgal " 3] - i 3
Exchange differences - -} =
Dther . - 9 =
AL 31 a8 March 2024 7,551.75 BLLTT 132.74 5842 047 T34 B.56H.4%
(¥ Lakly)
Neét Benk value Plant & Machinery Buallding- OfTige Freehold Land Tatal
Olice / Othar Equipmmis
| AT 31 51 March 2023 9,324.05 2384.19 3921 20533 11.973.14
ALY st Mareh 2024 0,701,339 2,260,846 29,75 20533 11.213.51]




Nota 3A- RO Asdei

Components of Praperty, plant and equipment {including assets held under finance leases) are as follows:

Right of Use Assets for the Year ended 31 st March,2024

(Tl Lakh)
Gross ook Aerumulated Depraciation Kat Block
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Right of Use Assets for the Year ended 31 st March, 2023
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FB. Coploil Wark im Progress

WP Ageing Sohmduls an on 31 st March 2024
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Capital Work in Progress for the Year ended 31 st March, 2024
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MNote 7 - luventories
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Tripura Natural Gas Company Liniited
Notes forming part of Financial Smements

13A. Trade Payables

Frade Fayables Ageing Schedule as on 31 5t March 2024

(¥ ln Lakh)
Outstanding for fullowing perivds from due date of payment
Partirulars Less than 6| 6 Manths- 1 More than
months Year 1-ZYears | 2-3 Years 3 Years Total
1] MSME 207.592 = - 20792
Ii] Others B4S BT - - - A45.07
iii} Disputed Dues-MSME . . % =
i) Dloputed Dues-Others a - . .
Total 1,053.78 - - 1,053.78
Trade Payobles Agelng Schedule as on 31 st March 2023
T Lakh)
Outstanding lor following rinds from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 8 | 6Months-1 Muorie than
months Year 1-2Years | 2-3 Years 3 Years ‘T'otal
il MSME 22586 - 225 86
ii] Uthers 913.94 - - D F13.44
1) Disputed Dues-MSME - - - - -
ﬂr] Disputed Dues-Dihers . = . = - -
| Total 1,139.31 - - - 1,139.31




17H. Lease Liakidlitles

Lompany as Liesee
alenss abilites (¥t Laki)
Partheslars Year ended 315 March, 2024 Year ended 31st March, 2023
Ul'lll'ﬂl'l_.ﬂ Balami= 1,624 ATT 84
Adustments jor:
Acltlitivns duiting the year G AT LT
Doletione during e veur . a
Acerution of imterest 1167 14047
Prredjjm etitiage loss an restatemens of e lahilley .
Litaze Liabdlitien Fnlddul’jmmurﬂ: 452 906 HROAE
Dacess Lishilities writbes bsck ' ‘
Clasing Balanog 141845 U ABRLY
Lease Liabiimies-Current I0836 SEELES
Lemse Liabilirios-Non Carrent Lofa 14 111759
Muturity Analysis of Leass Linbilities
A sl X1 al March 2024
Parti Lemthon 3
i minnths 1 te 12 months = 1t 5 ypars =5 Veurs Tulal
Leage Llnhlilluu[[.'umnl:'l ISLIT 714 FRE24
Lease Linhifites] Non-Curfent) . TELLZ 27508 105619
[Tomal - 113z.23 TS LALhAS
Asat 11 =t March 2021
Lesa than 3
Firimutary mbsisthis 1 to 12 mantha » 1 o5 yimrs > 5 Vears Totul
st Lialsilitles{Curn=nd] - 110.4% 35837 BLH.AT
age Lishilifes Mon-Ciprrent] - 1360 a9 111759
[Tamal S5410 [REFRE] 1,606.28
Amoantrocagnbzed in Stotement of Profiland Loss
Tartculars Year ended 515t March, 2024 Vear ended 31st March, 2023
Derpreclation o pghi-of-aee ysscts J60.11 ]
Interest expeise inlesss | ahilides L1670 14047
Expense relating to shor-torm leases
Pepbetiaus pelufiig ti live valion asnetbi-leinis
Varlahle bease payments
Tatal Ha5a1 Gthial
L, Riglet vl Une Answl
Farticuiars Yearended 31st March 2024 Yeprended 315t March 20201
Dpening Balapoe LG5T,54 514
A gt during the year 153 LERH TR
Leus Debetloms durlpptho pear
|Leng; Depeecidtion L AL
naing Ralance 10701 185754 |




Tripura Natural Gas Company Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

Note : 18 Revenue from Operations

{&in Lakhl

Particulars
Year ended Yeur ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Incomie from operations
Sale of CNG 1942647 1747591
Salesof PNG 8,795.57 8883.28
Tortal 28,222,04 Z6359.19
1. Disagaregated revenue information
Set out below is the disageregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers:

(T in Lakh)

N Yeur ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Revenue by type of customers
Sale to Domestlc customers 01112 146328
Sale to Industrial Customers 3,018.97 285570
Sale to Commercial customers 1,764.48 156430
Total revenue from contracts with customers B,705.57 8,883.28
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred over time B.795.57 B.BH3.28
Total revenue from contracts with customers B,795.57 B,883.28
2. Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables, contract assels and contract
linhitities From contracts with customers
Trade receivables (Nec)* 1,395.03 1.720.47
Contract linhllities
Advances from customens 2,557.36 2,566,535

* Trade receivables dre nog-interest bearing and sre generally on terms of 10 to 17 days.

3. Chunges in contract liabilities
For details refer Note 18A.

4, For disclosure as per IND AS 115, refor Note No 188,




Note : 19 Other Income

{®ln Lakh)
Particalars
Year ended Yeir onded
31 March 2024 31 March 20213
Interest income on fixed deposits from banks 65415 43244
HP Bent for Computer from Employees .30 0.33
Misc: Recnipts 7481 143.47
Interest received on Soft Loan to Employees 0.70 0,84
Amartlisation of Govt Grants & |nstallation Cost 27256 64.31
Interest Income 0.04 -
Interest ncome [Notlonal) 0.003 -
Intevest on Income Tax Refund 2343 (.35
Tatal 1,024.00 845.74
Mote : 20 Purchaze of traded goods
(T in Lakh]
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 Mareh 20324 31 March 2023
Purchase of Gas from related Party 5 13,301.90 1447330
Total 13,301.90 14,473.30

Note : 204 (lncrease)/Decrease in Inventories of Stock in Trade Finished Goods Work in Progress.

& In Lakh)
Farticulirs Year ended Yeur ended
. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Inventories at the end of the vear:-
Wark in FH:EEES - -
Finished Goods 2237 2337
Stock In Trade
Tatal 22.37 2337
toventaries at the beginning of the year:- - .
Waork In Progress = =
Fimished Goods 23.37 16.14
Stock in Trade. = =
Total 2337 16,14
Change in inventories of Stock in trade Finished Goods & WIP 1.00 g4
Rote : 21 Employee Benefit exponse
(T In Lakh)
Particulars Yearended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 Meirch 2023
Salaries and wages 349,27 363.10
Employer Contribution to PF 2338 2335
Leave Bncashiment 15.07 {33.84]
Company Contribution to Gratulty 046 B.70
Staff Wellare 16.23 1330
Tatal #1242

1. For detnils disclosure, refer Note 21A,




18A Changes in Contract Liabilities

(¥ In Lakh)

Financial Year |Particulars From Consumers{Rs.)
Opening Balance 2,561
T Addition During the year : 252
Less: Depreciation on CR (Current Liabilities) 266
Closing Balance 2,547

Financial Year Particulars From Consumers(fs.)
Opening Balance 2,547

2024-25 Add:Addition DT.I ring the year -

Less: Depreciation an CR (Current Liahilities) 242
Closing Balance 2,305
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Tripura Natural Gas Company Limited
Notes forming part of Finan rial Statements

Note : 22 Finance Cosis

(T in Lakli)

Particulars Year enided Year ended ]

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
|nterest Expenses-Lease Liability 116,70 14047
Total 116.70 14047
Note : 23 Other Expenses {Refer Note No. 25)

_ (T In Lakh)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 |
Repairs & Maintenance 1,424.60 1,346.68
Professional/Consultancy Service Fees 1884 25.61
Dealer Margin I,"Cumrnisslun on Sales[CNG] 394.23 44013
Rent (Office/Lease) 18.05 10.51
Repairs & Mainte nance-Others . 16.68 3.94
Audit Fees 4.97 4.52
Insurance 26.39 29.72
Dut of Pocket (Audit Expenses) 7.08 0.26
Electricity Expenses 246.14 222.18
Travel Expenses [TA Lo Directors, Employees etc.) 2244 B.02
SaD Expenses [Sales /Business Promotion Exps) 025 475
Vehicle Running & Maintenance 3126 34.54
Advertisement Expenses 0.60 4.89
Security Service Charges 135.89 19413
Rates & Taxes (TVAT/TRD Cess/Others) 2.896.45 227474
Carporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 65.25 62.21
Transportation Charges (CNG) 669.66 459.50
Charity and Donation 1.06 1.20
Other Expenses B03.36 508.03 |
Total 65,783.19 5,635.57 |
Details of payments to auditors: (€ In Lakh)
ﬁarth:ulars venr endid Year ended —]

31 March 2024

31 March2023 |

Payment to auditors:

cratutory Audit Fee 1.89 1.75
Limited Review Fees 3.08 277
Tax audit Fee . =
Total 4.97 4.52




Nate : 24 Tax Expenses

(< inn Lakh)
Particulars Year ended Yeur ended
3Y Mareh 2024 31 Miarch 2023
Currant tax 1,217.54 1,105
Deferrad Tax {71.89) (206.86]
Eartler Year Tax (344.49) 35.43
Total B01.16 933.16
i) Income tax refated Lo items charged or credited directly to profit or
(T in Lakh)
Statement of profit or loss Vear ended Year ended
Current income tax: 31 Mareh 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Current income tax charge = 1,217.54 1,104.59
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous [(344.49] 3543
=i
Deferved tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary (71:89) (206.86)
differences
Tax expense 801.16 933.16
b) Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by (¥ in Lakh)
Year ended Yoear ended
31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
Profit belore tax from continuing eperations 4,892.20 2958.34
Applicable Tax Rate 25.17% 29.12%
Tax at Indian Tax rate 1,231.00 B61.47
Effect of Income not considered for tax purpese (71.89) 206.86
Effect of Expense not allowed for tax purpose
Adjustments in respect of currant income tax of previous [344.49) 35.43
}'EEI!'
Adjustiment Far Tox Deducted at Source
Impact on account of non deductible expenses for tax
pUrposes (13.46] (170.59)
Income tax expense 801.16 933.16
Effective tax rate 16.38% 31.54%




Tripura Natural Gas Company Limited
MNotes forming part of Financial Statements

Note : 25 Other Expenses

(¥in Lakh)
Pariloulars As at Asat
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Operation & Maintenance-CNG 1.094.62 390.42
Operation & Maintenance-PNG 325.94 156.26
Printing & Statinnery 2.58 724
Professinnal Tax - .03
Professional fConsultancy Service Fees 13.05 19.76
Postage & Telegram 0.59 0.21
Dealer Margln on Sales[CNG) 394.23 440.13

al Expenses 312 4.10
Dffice Rant 12235 446
Repairs & Maintenance 1668 1.94
Telophone, Fax & Internet Expenses 11.94 73
Lense Bent (CNG & PNG) 506 446
Hank Chargos 76,92 21.22
Shed rent (.74 1.58
Al Fapo 7.65 627
'IA to Directors 992 153
Boeard Mesting Expenses 248 -
Eleciricity Expenses 246.14 2£2.18 |
Audit Expensos T.08 0.26
Insurance 26,39 20.72
Conveyance Expenses 232 217
Mize, Expenses 426 650
Office House Keeping & Maintenance Expenses - 71
Provision for Expected Credit Loss GIBE 95.15
Awiareniss on CNG & PNG / National Salely Day B.50 1.7
Sales fRusiness Promotion Expensas 0.25 4,75
Vehlcle Running & Maintenance : 3126 3454
Notlce & Advertisement 060 489
TA to Employees / Tour Expenses 1252 Gt
Security Service Charpes 13589 194.13
Entertiinment Expenses A 541
TVAT 46752 35286
TVAT related to the AY. 2005-06 & 2006-07 48.87 -
News Fapor, Boolks & Periodicals 0.17 [
Calendar & Dairy Printdng Expenses - -
Wehsite Malntenance Expénses 14.05 655
Hates & Taxes 9.61 ary
Seminar, Conference & Training Expenses L] =
India Intornatonal Trade Fair - 3.00
Industres & Commerce Fair Expenses 257 4.08
Fastival Expanses 871 5.78
Fire Safety Day (.80 -
THGEL Foundation Day Celsbration Expenses f.494 737
Corporate Social Responsibility [C5R] 15.25 6221
Waler Charpes 0.30 0.74
Canteen Nunning Expensas 0.96 0.24
Transpertation Charges (ONG) G69.66 459.50
Billing System 62.13 A6Gh
Wapes to Dutsource Staff (Service Charges) 11970 109,10
Charity and Donation 1.06 1,20
PRGRE Bidding Expenses 130,30 15.00
Tralning & Recruitment Expenses 015 -
Interest on TVAT Payahile 41.68%9 =
TRD Cess 237034 1.913.08
Direcor Quarier Expenges 2.62 248
Manpower Cost - Deputation employes 23417 21984
Rent Prepaid -Amartization 0.00 -
Tl 5,783.19 5,635.57




Tripurs Natural Gag Company Limited
Hotes forming part of Financial Statements

26A Contingent Liahilides
Clatms mode agmmst tho company not ackpoeiedged as dehis

- {T In Lakty)
Partivulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

ooy carpee) demand notices recedved from poveriment - -
authorities (Other Agencles -

Appeal s heen flliad yide NorE/ 77086/ 2019-08 de 1 7-00-
2019 at CESTAT Kolkiia aganinat the Order

ol Cammissloner/CEET AGT 2019 dieted (e 062019 by
Honhle Comnrninshonar, Contral Goeils & Service Tax,

Agartaia

amr 387

Appesl hus heun Eled with CESTAT, Koillats e 13-04-
1021 ugainst the (reler of The Commissionerol Central
Exclsn { Appeals ) LGST, Guwahat,

apjpead s been filed vide Nosil 403062022 belore The
Adlstsnt Rejitrarn Customa Exciae & Service Tax Appellane
Tribunal, Easr Zomal Bersh, Kolkats sgainst the Grdes

Nasb2 (ACTCE{A) GHY /2021 dited 01002022 by
Commisslaner]Appeals |, CO5T Guwaleail,

20 ]

Detaily of 561G

Bunk Guarantes to Petroles oned Notural Gis
Regulatory Beard:

Ligm by State fank ol Indwa 252 -
L by HEHCH Hank 3570 .
Performanee Dank Guarantes for Agartals, West
[Tripnral EAAA) Gomatt Bistrice GA and Manipurs sod
Mizoram State GA and Bid Bond for 06 New Gas:

Lien by State Bank ol 14 dla 10
10,297 A1

268 Commitments (T in Lakh)

J1-Mar-24 F1-Mar-
3 Esumated amount of Contracts remalning to be exerusd 3,004 LERD
i Caph ) Aceount ond not provided for [Nt of Advances)

&) Thie Campany dues nit expect any relmbursament in regpect of the above contingent lintdlitres:
b Icls not practicable to antirnate the tining =l sty ot floen, (Famy, In pedpect of mattaes shave, peading
resalution of the srhitration appellate proceedings.

27 Related Party trimsactions
(&) Wumes of Related parties and natide af related party relitlonships

fa]  Entiteswhich eercse control/ joint-contralf significant influence over the comjany
Gatl {Lneki=] Limbted
Trigiuea Imlustrinl Dovebopraont Corparation Limited
Assam Gas Compuny Limibed

(h) Key management persomnnel
Mr & Anbierasun-Monaging Director
Mr 5T Reang - Dircetor [Commenaal)
M. Subrata Pelinat- CPD
MrPradaep . Mahato-CS




Thig foblowing table pravideos the total amount due To or dus from the relied parties as on 31 52 March

2024 and 31 st March K3
(T I Lakh)
ﬁ'lulnllﬂrl A1-Mar-24 Ji-Mar-23
Gall {India) Limivod
Profit & Lisss
Gale Purchass of goods 1330190 1447330
s [rectcer Salary & Perbs pald ZEAT 2l
Directon Qi lent 262 248
Diividand Paid w10 12637
13,637,090 14,821,948
‘Illlluﬂﬁ Sheet
[ Trade Puyahle 62500 T3flaL
Exnenses Payable 104 21.50
Tripura Indusirial Development Corporation Limited
Prafit & Loss
Sale,! Purchase of grods =
Oithier-Direrinr Salury & Perks pald . -
Lease Arranpements Z1AT 48,20
Pisidend Fald S1b6 6582
74,13 ii4.02
Halunce Sheet
v Fayabile & . -
Eaperisis Puynble L6 133
fias Company Limited
I"rofil & Loss
ale /. Purchade of poods -
(Hher-tirecuar Salary & Pucks paid -
Loiwe ATanfEmonts - -
Dividend Pald 5166 65 82
Hey Mamigerial Personnel
1. Mr. Subrata Debnath- GFO '
Habinoe Shesl
Advanco agalnst sasary 46T 153
Prafir & Lo
Remuneration am ]
2. Mr Pradecp Kr. Mahato-Cs
(Balance Shedt
Acdvancn sgafmet salary L6T 411
Profit & Loss
Remumeration 16,06 it b

Segmont teporting

The Company has a dingle operatig s=gment Uhat bs “Sake ol Katwral Gas”. Accordingly, the sgmeat pVELIR
apEment results, segnient asiets an i gegrmyent liabilities are refl

aindd fiar £ paried yoar ended 31 st March 2024

Erticy wide disclosures:

{nformation shout prodycts and sErdices,
Thie Company 1= 18 il line of business of “Sals af Matipral Gas™

b,

Deugnphie Infoination’s
The company eperates presenty bn the buktess af ety gos

ciestanters s il assuts are locsted in |ndia anky

et by the financial statements themstlves az at

dlseribvirtion i Endia Accordingly, rnis fram




Tripirs Matural Gar Comipany Lismbiod
Moty harmnbog part of Fireeneial Sintemens
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Tripmra Matural Gas Com puy Linissd

Saten larming part of Finane al Stiemests

70 Coplital nanageme st
Far the purpase of the Lompany ¥ caplial masagement, caplial includes sped capical and all pouee squity rassrves aftrihutshle i the squiny halidars af the [isreie,
T Compary abms do manage in mpial eflioscily o e o safeguurd e abilio o pontinee o & golng eonerm aned 1o apimise renrm o i sbarsholders _
Thee Compary's pelicy |5 o imsintuin @ abshile and sheag cappial structsre with @ Tinus es totl ety su e b masntain aeesi, areditors snl market sinlidence and s
UETAIR LS v hoqumsn | A Frowtis of (s iesineas Thie Compaiy will ke agproprate step in oeder oomiinkain, oF i necessary adjsk, 5 copital structure

11 Acroumting classificatinns and fair vahie measinements

The Campny uses e Hilowing hisrasny for determming and disccang the B wiue of fnarsal isgtrument by valuation technigue:

Set o hedow 15 3 comparisan by class of the carmying amenats and B valoss of the Commpany's Anancial instremeists that are carrbed (o e nancial
ALilnmenie

As ardlat March 34, the Company hald dar tnlh‘mmg finamcas) invorusenes rarmiad of i valse on the SEatemOl | i fimanclal positen)

1 (¥ der Lakhy
Parialar m.%& Dl Vufue Jpr vy
W1-Mar-24| A1-Mar-24 |Level 1 Lovel 2 |Leveid
I mrEsly ot am ‘cmti
Mom currnl
Lo il poeidliinildhes - -
Cilier Finaneml 2ssets
139509 139503
12157 LHLST
= 12,200,658 1225065
21,70 2170
| el 13,60, B 13 106 i = = =
L_HHMH.I.IHH af umorifeed coai:
| M catrent
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Trade Fayahles
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Ll il puitmrmmding dues sther tsan [i] above [EEN R LT
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Tripurs Matural Gag Chempnny Limitod
Hetes i (anclal stotementa

37 Enrnlugs Pes Shure [E1'5)
) Elasic enrning = sbare
Paslc sarning per shars stributahie to the egully biekles of the Company

1] Dkl sdising pec sharg
Difuind earnimg per share ateributabh o tue equy biddees of the company

J1-Mar- A1-Mar-23
NI (2} INRL[T)
13837 K71
1337 aTsl

Bk 1% amounts ney s alonlated by dividing e s (s for the yeor attrdoks hie b eqaity lalders of the Compasy by the weighted avwegs

Dolisstwel 7S ammuuimts are caleiglated Ly diviling the profiz) [le] attribecbibe teguity hlders ol tan Company by the welghtod aversge uumiber of

T fallirwlig roflecty the income and share duta used i e bashe and ditited EPS compuistiana:

Prof detiilitsble B equity halileis of the Company

Lonbinning spranons

Disvatuiod coerztan

Prufit attrihatable to eqpuity hadders of the Company for baskc carnlogs

el ditrabatalile tn sty balders of the Cempany niljusted for the sffect of difution

Walghtotl dvessge numbier of Bty stares for iy B7E°
[t aif el

Walghted avirage namber of Tquity shaces adfiuned for tee-eflect of dilation *

FL-Mur-24 11-Mar34
riniakty (A Laki)
(it Srated ]
(Y31 1075
LR 2015
s 2R
O A0
300000 00000

* Thie walphitod peermge nuelar of shures G intn pecmn th witlghted arvernge #lfuct of changes (o troary shire triEmetone dariig e yoar.
Thets have been Bo otlier tranuctons imvalvisg Bquity shares pr potenisd Bquiy shares hegween the reparting dure and the duti of anthorization of

e Fincanilil stafements

43 Proviows prats figgees have bevu regrovped f iechassifiod whichever socessary i correspond with the marrent year's clasdficitlonf

diwiosure.

54 Disclosure relating o Corporate Social Respouaibility{CER):

Ak e Serzian 135 uf the Gompranies Act 2017 rond with gridelines jssued by Departmest of Palilie Batergrisi (0Lt Crmpnny 18 roquined,in svery
Fintnciad yarat lenst 2 jur oot of the averige oar prafits of e Coiiguy s dariiig the three Immedizte pretediag financiol yssrs In accordance

i Jbe 3R Palicy. Acrardinglyahe Cimpany was rerguiied in gpond B S 24,60/ - wovards S50 eaqpendibiee Im

sl e ety OST magroniiion e i FauhS 240504 Thive b o abortinl anaccoutt of C5A

twe finaneial year 3023-24 agnirs

[} tho dlaclintere I respect af CSH sxpenditure for FY 207334 is 41 undar (€ i Lakit)
[Particuiaes 203324 201233
[i] Ammmnt ool 1 bespnt by ie Comgoiiy durliig the year
A 3R Allngath BL2Y 62,21
Curvy Bupwied Trom Previows Yior -
Thru tidiis dPSru:bu_u'HS ||[L‘h|l.'.nligu.iuhﬂn?ﬂm EE-_E 5111
pandkmre incurmid 5535 HEIL
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Tripura Namral Gas
Notes forming parto

pote 35 Expected Credit Loss Calculation

Company Limited
{ Financial Statements

FY 2021-22
(T In Lakh)

Customer Disconnections _|Turnover [s6 age |Average Rate
Domestic 32.80 T045.85 | LOR% ==|
Commercial 7.56 §41.71 | 0.80%
Induarrinl 1222 152617 | 0.80%
Total £2.58 5,513.73 0.95%
FY 2022-23

(¥ In Lakh)
Customer Disconnections | Turnover 9 age |Average Rate
Damestic 17.78 4,463,128 (3,
Commercin 7.66 1,564.30 45%
Inctustrinl 872 2.855.70 0,34%
Total 35.15 §,883.28 0.40%
FY 2023-24

{2 |n Lakh)
Customer Disconnections | Turmaover 5 oge |Average Rate
Dhomestic 3202 401112 | 0Bl
[Comnenial 22.50 1,764.48 | 1.28%
[dusirial 18.34 3,018.97 {).61%
Total 72.87 8,795.57 | 2.68% 0.83%
Avernie Disconnectinn Rats (Percentage of Turmover) 0,73%
Expected Credit Loss 12 be booked (T In Lakh) 63.85
(£ -Domestic 1902 |
ECL-Comiercial 30.37
FCL-lndustrial 14.47
Total 63.85




Tripurs Natwral Gas Company Limited
Maotos forming part of Financial Stateionis
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT
GENERAL (AUDIT). TRIPURA

Lir No: AMG-T Wing/ 2024-2025DIS-2003224
Date: 05 Sep 2024
To,

1 The Managing Director
Tripura Natoral Gas Company Limirted
Shilpa Nigam Bhawan
Khejurbagan, Kunjaban
Agartaia — 799006, West Tripura.

Subject: 1ssue of Comment : PR-126347- Comments of the Comptroller and Audrtor General of India nnder
Section 143 (6) (b) of the Compamies Act 2013 on the accounts of Tripora Natural Gas Company Limited for
the year ended 31 March 2024,

SirMadam,

I am forwarding herewith Nil Comments certificate under Section 143 (8) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on
the accounts of Tripura Natural Gas Company Limited for the vear ended 31 March 2024

Two copies of the printed annual accounts for the vear as mentioned above together with the Directors”™ Eeport
thereon may please be sent to this office for record.

The receipt of this letter may please be acknowledged.

Yours fasthfully,
Encls: As above
Kavvadeep Joshi
Senior Deputy Accountant General (Audit)
Copy to-

Ltr No - AMG-I Wing/2024-2025/DI5-2003224/C1/For Information
The Director General (INER) -L

Office of the Comptroller and Auditor Genperal of India,

9, Deen Daval Upadhyay Marg.

New Delhi — 110124,




COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF
INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TRIPURA NATURAL GAS COMPANY
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

The preparation of financial statements of Tripura Natural Gas Company
Limited (the Company) for the year ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the
financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) is
the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Thie Statutory Auditors appointed
by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139(5) of the Act are
responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of the
Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated 10 have been done by them vide their
Audit Report dated 10™ May 2024,

I. on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of Tripura Natural Gas Company
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This
supplementary audit has been carried oul independently without access to the working
papers of the Statutory Auditors and is limited primarily to the inquiries of the Statutory
Auditors and company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting
records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit, nothing significant has come to my
knowledge which would give rise to any comment or supplement to statutory auditors’

report under section 143(6)(b) of the Act,

For and on behalf of the
Compitroller & Auditor General of India

Place: Agartala
Date: 05" September 2024 - :

(A. Pitoho Chophy)
Principal Accountant General (Audit), Tripura
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€S Biman Debnath ' ﬂ s l BIMAN DEBNATH & ASSOCIATES

Form Mo. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315TMARCH, 2024
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

M/s Tripura Natural Gas Company Limited
(CIN: U23201TR19905GC003451)

Shilpa Nigam Bhawan, Khejur Bagan,
Kunjaban, Agartala-799006, West Tripura

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s TRIPURA
NATURAL GAS COMPANY LIMITED (hereinafter called “the Company”).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion
thereon.

Based on our verification of books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained bv M/s Tripura Natural Gas Company Limited and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers and authorized representatives
during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31* March,
2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper board-processes and compliance-mechanism in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records provided to us at the time of audit by Company Secretary, of the Company for
the financial year ended on 31% March, 2024 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii)  The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.
(iitf) Other Acts or Guidelines:

(i) Guidelines from the Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas.
(i)  Order, Instructions, Guidelines of the Dept of Public Enterprises, Govt.
of Tripura.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

Flat No 402, Block -C, Prakash Choudhury Hosing Complex “Prasanti Pride” , Tarun Nagar
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(1) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India with respect to Board & General Meetings.

8 Biman Debnath '“s' BIMAN DEBNATH & ASSOCIATES

(if)  Joint Venture Agreement.

We turther report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the
Company and on the examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance
thereof on testcheck basis, the Company has complied with the following laws
applicable specifically to the Company:

(i) The Emplovees’ Proviaent Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,
1952,

(ii) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. except in the following instances :

1. The location of Directors attending the Board meeting through Video Conferencing is
not mentioned n the Minutes of the 119" Board meetings held through Video
Conferencing as per clause 7.2.2,1(e) of the Secretarial Standard-1 issued by the Institule
of Company Secretanies of India.

l_!'k.i

Clause 7.2.2.2 of the Secretarin: Slandard-1 issued by the Institute of Compuany
Secretaries of India requires that

"Apart from the Resolution or the decision, Minutes shall mention
the brief background of all proposals and summarise the deliberations
thereaf. Tn case of major decisions, the rationale thereof shall also be
mentioned.”

However in general tt has been observed thal few items under the minules does nol
adequately disclose in brief the background of the proposal and the deliberations thereof
and necessary care should be taken in this regards in future preparation of minutes.

3. The Company has not constituted Internal Complaints Committee as required wnder
Section 4(1) of the Sexual Harassmeni of Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013, in the year unicr review, though there exists a congenial working
enviromment for the workers of both the genders in the Company.
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4. While going through the recordings of the Board meeting held through video
conferencing, it was observed that the recordings lacked overall clarity in terms of the
audio quality.

ESBiman Debnath '"s' BIMAN DEBNATH & ASSOCIATES

We further report that:

Adequate notice were given to all directcrs to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent ir. advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

The decisions of the Board were being carried on with the requisite majority and no
dissenting views have been recorded, as per the minutes of the meetings, the minutes
were duly recorded and signed by the Chairman.

We further report that there exist adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Based on the representation of the management, during the audit period, there are no
specific events/actions having a majcr bearing on the Company Affairs in pursuance
of the laws, rules, regulations, guide}inés, standards etc. referred above.

For Biman Debnath & Associates
Company Secretaries

CS Biman Debnath
(Proprietor)

C.P. No.5857

FCS No. 6717

UDIN: F006717F000681512

Date: 06/07/2024
Place: Guwahati
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGAD)

Notice 1s hereby given that the 34* Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of Tonpura Natural Gas Co.
Ltd will be held at Registered Office at Shilpa Nigam Bhawan, Khejur Bagan. Kunjaban, Agartala, Tnpura-
799006 on Monday, the 30" day of September, 2024 at 12.00 hrs. to fransact the following business through
Video Conferencing / Other Audio-Visual Means in conformity with the regulatory provisions and Circulars

1ssued by the Mimistry of Corporate Affaurs: -

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, discuss. consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement for the Financial Year ending on
31st March, 2024 and the report of Board of Director’s on the working and activities of the Company and
Independent Auditors’ Report thereon and the comments thereupon of Comptroller and Auditor General of

India and to pass the following resolution as an ordinary Resolution

"RESOLVED THAT the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024 and the Profit & Loss Account
for the year ended on that date together with the Reports of the Directors and Independent Auditors’
Reports and the comments thersupon of Comptroller and Aunditor General of India be and are hereby
received. considered and adopted *

[
+

To declare dividend for the financial year ended 31st March 2024
To conmnider and if deemed fit. to pass the followns as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Dividend @ 7.5% of profit afler tax as per the audited Financial Statements for the
financial vear 202324, amounting Rs. 3.06,82 825 (Rupees Three Crore Six Lakhs Eighty-Two
Thousand Eight Hundred Twenty-Five only) to be dismbuted/paid to ail the Shareholders in their
respective shareholding ratio be & is hereby approved for the FY-2023-24."

3. To appont statutory Auditor as when recommended by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India and
authonized the Board of Directors to fix the remuneration for the year 2024-25 and to pass the following
resolution with or without modification as an ordinary Resclution.

“RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the company be and 15 hereby authonzed to appomt
Statutory Auditor as recommended by Comptroller & Aunditor General of India for domng Statutory Aundit
for Y. 2024-25 and fix remuneration of statutory Auditor including quarterly sudit ™

SPECIAL BUSINESS
4. Approval of Rermmeration of the Cost Auditor for the financial vear 2024-25. To consider and if thought
fit. to pass the followmg resolution with or without modification as an ordinary Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act2013 read with Compmmes (Audrt & Aunditors) Rules, 2014 mcloding any statutory
modifications or re-enactment thereof. for the tme beme m force, M's Mam & Co., Cost Accountants be & 15
hereby appointed as the Cost Auditor of the company to conduct audit of cost records for FY. 202425 at the
stipulated Cost Audit Fees of Rs. 60,775/~ excluding all taxes and out of pocket expenses like air fare, fooding,
accommodation. local travelling expenses, XBRI conversion etc. shall be either re-imbursed to the Cost Auditor
firm if incurred by them or will be paid directly by TNGCL in case they are arranged by the Company itzelf be

and is ratified and approved ™
By Order of the Board of Director
Date: 09-09-2024
Place: Agartala
5d/-
Pradeep Kumar Mahato
Company Secretary

PR




To
The Board of Directors, Members and Anditors

NOTES:

1. In view of the COVID 19 pandemic, in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA General Circular No. 2002020, 14/2020 and 17/2020
dated 5th May, 2020, BthApnl, 2020 and 13thApnl, 2020 respectively (collectively referred to
as "Circulars’), has introduced certain measures enabling companies to convene their Annual
General Meetings (AGMW Meeting) through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual
Means (OAVM) and also send nofice of the Meeling and other comespondences related
thereto, through electronic mode. In compliance with the said requirements of the MCA
Circulars, electronic copy of the Notice along with the Annual Report for the financial year
ended 31stMarch, 2019 consisting of financial statements including Board's Report, Auditors’
Report and other documents required o be atiached therewith(Collectively referred io as
Notice) have been sent only to those members whose e- mail ids are regisiered with the

Company and no physical copy of the Nolice has been sent by the Company to any
member.

2. If there is any change in the e-mail ID already registered with the Company, members are
requested to immediately notify such change to the Company in respect of shares held in
physical form.

3. As per the above-mentioned circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, as physical
attendance of members has been dispensed with, so there is no reguirement for
appointment of proxies Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by members will
not be available for this meeting. However, corporate members are required fo send o the
Company, a certified copy of the Board Resolution, pursuant fo section 113 of the
Companies Act 2013, authorizing their represeniative to attend and vole at the Meeling

through VC.

4. The meeting allows two-way teleconferencing for the ease of paricipation of the members
and the members.

5. Aftendance of the members through VC shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the
quorum under section 103 of the AcL

6. All the efforts feasible under the circumsiances have indeed been made by the Company to
enable members to pariicipate and vote on the items being considered in the meeting,

7. During the meeting held through VC or OAVM facility, where a poll on any item is demanded
or required, the members shall cast their vole on the resolutions only by sending emails
through their email addresses which are regisiered with the company. The said emaiis shail
only be sent at the designated email address - pradeep_mahato@tngcloniine.com

B. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their sharehoiding maintained
under Section 170 of the Companies Act. 2013 and the Register of Contracts and
Amrangements in which Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013 shall be made available only in electronic form for inspection during
the Meeting through VC.

9. The resuilts of voting shall be aggregated and declared at the Meeting of the Company by the
Chairman.

PR




EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013
As reguired by sub section 1 of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, the following explanatory
statement set out all the matenal facts relating to ftem No. 4 of the accompanying Nofice.

frem No. 4

The Board of Directors, approved the appointment of M/s Mani & Co., Cost Accounfants as Cost
Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records maintained by the company for the financial year
2024-25 ending 31 March, 2025.

In accordance with the provision of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified the
members of the Company. Accordingly, the consent of the Members is sought for passing Ordinary
resolutions as set out at Item No. 04 of the Notice for approval of the remuneration payable (o the
Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 31+ March, 2025.

The Board recommends the resolution for the approval of the shareholders.
No Director, Manager. other key managenal personnel and refatives of the same are concemed or
interested in the passing of this Resolution.
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